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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Good morning. I'm

          3  Gale Brewer. I'm the Chair of the City Council

          4  Committee on Technology in Government. I'm here with

          5  Michael Santarelli (phonetic), who is the Policy

          6  Analyst, and will soon be joined by Freddy Kaplan,

          7  who is the Counsel to the Committee, and members who

          8  are on their way, I'm sure. But because technology

          9  folks are always on time, we're going to get going.

         10                 This is a very special hearing to me

         11  because I feel so strongly about self-sufficiency,

         12  safety nets and human service programs. That's what

         13  I come from. It's nice to combine technology in the

         14  hope that we can make people's lives easier in New

         15  York by expanding their ability to get human

         16  services. When you are in trouble, there is nothing

         17  more important than a City worker, a non- profit

         18  worker and putting the two together to help

         19  somebody.

         20                 Today's hearing is oversight

         21  expanding 311 service to include information on

         22  social and not- for- profit services. It is

         23  Valentine's Day, so happy Valentine's Day to

         24  everybody. And the focus of the hearing is because

         25  some time ago, actually even before DoITT, the
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          2  Department of Information Technology and

          3  Telecommunications and the United Way sort of joined

          4  together to expand the 311 system to include 211

          5  types of services, we were actually meeting with

          6  people in New York City who are very interested in

          7  211. This is a culmination of many more years of

          8  work on this topic.

          9                 But there are many questions to be

         10  asked and that's why we are having the hearing. If

         11  we are bringing together the huge number of non-

         12  profits in the City of New York that focus on human

         13  services and the City's technology system, there are

         14  so many questions. How will this initiative be

         15  funded? What are the plans to manage the increased

         16  call volume? How will the new service be staffed?

         17  Where will they be located? What is the tentative

         18  time frame for implementation of this new service?

         19  How will United Way, all the non- profits in the

         20  City coordinate with the many, many non- profits

         21  that specialize in human services?

         22                 The City's 311 system, I think we are

         23  very familiar with, was launched in 2003. It is the

         24  Mayor's signatory in terms of technology. It does

         25  make government more accessible. It has many
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          2  languages. It is open 24/7. It handles 40,000 calls

          3  per day. I think that is probably average more

          4  perhaps on a day like a blizzard. It can be expanded

          5  to include information on new services.

          6                 The background information on 211

          7  which you may not be as familiar with because it is

          8  not a system that exists currently in New York. In

          9  2000, the FCC reserved the 211 dialing code for

         10  community information and referral obviously known

         11  as INR services. In the United States, there are 171

         12  active 211 systems operating in 32 states reaching

         13  more than 137 million Americans. I think it was used

         14  somewhat successfully in the Delta during the

         15  horrendous hurricane Katrina situation.

         16                 It can be expanded, but some of the

         17  types of services the 211 can offer obviously basic

         18  human needs, food banks, shelters, benefits,

         19  physical and mental health resources. I think

         20  obviously the issue now is, I'm sure that 311 is

         21  getting a lot of calls about Medicare questions and

         22  the question would be if there was a 211 system,

         23  would they have more option for getting people what

         24  they need. Employment support, obviously job

         25  training support for older Americans and persons who
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          2  are disabled, for families and the list goes on. I

          3  think it is also interesting that it can provide

          4  volunteer opportunities and where people can be

          5  supportive of their neighbors.

          6                 The City has a plan to expand 311. It

          7  was announced by the Mayor. DoITT to partner with

          8  United Way of New York to expand 311 to include the

          9  non- profit community. This two stage plan that has

         10  been announced (you never know if these things are

         11  going to happen), but this is what has been

         12  announced, is the planning period would be through

         13  mid- 2007 and estimated cost of $3.9 million. And

         14  the launch would be July 2007 with an estimated cost

         15  of $10.1 million.

         16                 There are many questions as I

         17  indicated at the beginning. The staffing who will

         18  administer the services, the training, where will

         19  they be located, what the funding issues are, what

         20  the infrastructure would be, how would it be

         21  upgraded if warranted. And the big question, would

         22  NYC ever have a separate 211 number to dial. To the

         23  best of my knowledge, this would be the only system

         24  that would be initiated with 311 first and 211

         25  incorporated at the outset.
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          2                 In conclusion of this power point, I

          3  just want to say that we have been sitting on an

          4  advisory board to the 211 system even before 311 was

          5  in the picture. We do applaud the efforts of the

          6  City agencies and United Way. The Committee hopes to

          7  ensure that this is done in an efficient way. And

          8  more importantly, inclusive, there are many union

          9  issues. There are many confidentiality issues. You

         10  could list a long array of questions, but the

         11  concept is a good one. But as everybody know, it

         12  depends on how it is implemented; with whom and by

         13  whom and how inclusive.

         14                 Without further a due, that's our

         15  introduction. I hope that Michael can join us back

         16  here and we're very, very honored to having a new

         17  member of the Committee, Council Member Oliver

         18  Koppell from the Bronx. Thank you, sir, for being

         19  here. Our first witness, a panel, but the

         20  representative of the Department of Information

         21  Technology and Telecommunications, Dean Schloyer,

         22  Assistant Commissioner, Executive Director of 311,

         23  please join us. Also, on the panel is Gary Wartels,

         24  United Way of New York; Linda Daily who is the New

         25  York State 211 Collaborative. What we are going to

                                                            9

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  do is ask the representative of DoITT to speak first

          3  and to have some questions because I know he has a

          4  time constraint.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Madam Chair,

          6  just I want to say how pleased I am to join you on

          7  this Committee. And you have done a great job of

          8  putting technology on the agenda and I'm looking

          9  forward to learning a great deal. Let me also,

         10  unfortunately say that I'm also on the

         11  Transportation Committee which is meeting next door,

         12  so I will have to share my time between the two

         13  Committees. But I will try and be here as much as

         14  possible.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you. I

         16  think trucks and technology go well together.

         17  Welcome. Do you want to start and introduce yourself

         18  and thank you for joining us.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHLOYER: Thank

         20  you. Good morning, Chairperson Brewer and members of

         21  the Technology in Government Committee. My name is

         22  Dean Schloyer, Deputy Commissioner for the

         23  Department of Information Technology and

         24  Telecommunications. I'm responsible for managing the

         25  311 Citizen Service Center. Thank you for the
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          2  opportunity to testify today regarding New York

          3  City's enhanced 311 initiative.

          4                 Since the beginning of his

          5  Administration, Mayor Bloomberg has championed the

          6  use of technology to support agency missions and

          7  make government more accessible, responsive, and

          8  accountable. Perhaps the largest single factor in

          9  improving the public's access to government has been

         10  the creation and growth of 311. Since its official

         11  launch in March 2003, 311 has provided New Yorkers

         12  with one easy to remember phone number while

         13  revolutionizing the manner in which they access

         14  government information and services. Calls to 311

         15  are answered by a live operator, 24 hours a day,

         16  seven days a week, in an average of less than 30

         17  seconds, with services offered in 170 languages. The

         18  call center regularly receives more than 40,000

         19  calls each day and has received more 30 million

         20  calls since its inception.

         21                 Building on 311's mission to provide

         22  callers with easy access to government, 311 began

         23  co- hosting 211 Planning Committee and Steering

         24  Committee meetings with the United Way of New York

         25  City in January 2005. Our intention was to explore
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          2  how New York City could provide an enhanced

          3  capability to supplement what we currently do at

          4  311. Specifically, we were interested in providing

          5  callers for human services with an appropriate over-

          6  the- phone assessment of need and referral to the

          7  best available resource for service; whether that

          8  was government or a non- profit organization.

          9                 The Committees consisted of

         10  representatives from 311, the United Way, non-

         11  profits, City health and human service agencies and

         12  elected officials. Their work focused on issues

         13  relating to how a 211 service could be successfully

         14  offered in New York City given the size and

         15  complexity of our environment. Some unique factors

         16  about New York City to consider include the City

         17  government's dominant role in the delivery of health

         18  and human services relative to other localities, the

         19  absence of a comprehensive Information and Referral

         20  or I&R service (although we have a well- established

         21  network of specialized I&R services), the diversity

         22  of our population, and the prominence and success of

         23  our 311 system.

         24                 Many questions regarding the

         25  implementation of these services, including the
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          2  one's Council Member has asked remain to be

          3  resolved. However, our collaborative process has

          4  laid a Blueprint for how New York City can offer 211

          5  type services to the public. First, we have made a

          6  commitment to adhere to national and New York State

          7  Collaborative 211 standards for the enhanced 311

          8  service. Among other things, this includes

          9  incorporating a standard taxonomy in the database we

         10  will develop to provide this service, utilizing

         11  rigorous and objective criteria for including

         12  resources in the database, employing qualified and

         13  trained I&R specialists to provide this service and

         14  offering access to the resources through a website

         15  as well as over the phone.

         16                 Second, the committees also

         17  recognized DoITT's role as the lead technology

         18  expert for the project, and the key position of

         19  311's capabilities and technology to enable the

         20  development of a comprehensive I&R function in New

         21  York City. Leveraging the infrastructure of the 311

         22  environment, we will be able to include an even

         23  wider array of health and human services provided by

         24  government agencies, non- profits and community-

         25  based organizations in New York City. Through 311,
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          2  callers will be able to speak to specialized call

          3  takers trained to assess their needs and provide

          4  them with the appropriate information and referrals.

          5  Callers will be able to receive information and

          6  referrals to assist with housing, health care, job

          7  training, daycare, substance abuse programs, and

          8  educational opportunities among others.

          9                 311 has established itself in New

         10  York City as the main point of contact between the

         11  public and a wide range of government related

         12  services including a variety of health and human

         13  services offered by government agencies. It will be

         14  the sole point of entry for these expanded services.

         15  311's robust technology infrastructure means that we

         16  can move quickly to enhance our capabilities to

         17  deliver these services, and we are already providing

         18  many of the benefits that are typically sought for

         19  211 initiatives.

         20                 For example, as demonstrated during

         21  the August 2003 power failure and the Staten Island

         22  Ferry disaster, we are already capable of supporting

         23  large scale disaster response and 911 call

         24  deflection. Our ability to handle large volumes of

         25  calls during a Citywide emergency was most recently
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          2  demonstrated during the Transit Strike, in which we

          3  handled over 240,000 calls in a single day. In

          4  addition, 311 also provides access to government

          5  provided health and human services and information

          6  on volunteer opportunities in the City.

          7                 In the first phases of the project,

          8  we will be enhancing our technology to meet the

          9  needs of this additional service. We also will

         10  continue working with the Mayor's office, government

         11  agencies, United Way, specialized I&R's and non-

         12  profits in the City to make decisions about

         13  appropriate next steps and planning for later phases

         14  of the implementation. Finally, although DoITT and

         15  311 represent a key element of this program, we

         16  believe that the enhanced 311 initiative will only

         17  succeed in New York City if it develops in phases,

         18  as a partnership of the non- profit community and

         19  City government.

         20                 In addition, to leveraging our

         21  investment in 311, we must also ensure that enhanced

         22  311 draws on the strength of the existing

         23  specialized I&Rs. We plan to build a new

         24  comprehensive information and referral system that

         25  brings all of these assets together, and we look
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          2  forward to the participation of the non- profit

          3  community, government agencies and the City Council

          4  in the planning and implementation process.

          5                 On November 10, 2005, Mayor Bloomberg

          6  formalized our commitment to this project by

          7  announcing the enhanced 311 initiative that will

          8  expand access to community- based and non- profit

          9  health and human services. At that announcement, he

         10  highlighted our relationship with United Way of New

         11  York City, an organization we look forward to

         12  continuing to work with. Since then, Linda Gibbs has

         13  also been appointed as the Deputy Mayor for Health

         14  and Human Services and we also look forward to her

         15  leadership in this effort as we move forward.

         16                 Thank you again for inviting us here

         17  to testify. That concludes my prepared remarks. And

         18  I would be happy to answer any questions you may

         19  have.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: All right. We

         21  will do a few questions if that's okay with Gary and

         22  Linda. Council Member Koppell, feel free to jump in.

         23  I think one of the questions I would have to start

         24  with is what is the current status of funding for

         25  the expansion of the services? I believe that under
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          2  Linda Gibbs direction, she also has the Integrated

          3  Human Services Network and I'm wondering between the

          4  expense issues that will be involved and the capital

          5  issues, I believe that the capital line in the

          6  budget is around $50 million, but it is called

          7  Integrated Human Services. I'm just trying to

          8  understand the relationship between that program

          9  which I know well, started by Ester Fuchs, 13 City

         10  agencies working together, I'm not sure where it is

         11  at. And then this, what is the relationship and

         12  what's the funding?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHLOYER: Let me

         14  speak a little bit to the IHSS technology and how it

         15  might integrate with the 211 initiative. As you

         16  know, IHSS initial implementation is designed to

         17  assist customers in understanding their eligibility

         18  for specific government programs. It is a screening

         19  tool that allows people to answer basic questions

         20  and understand whether or not they might be eligible

         21  for government programs.

         22                 We see 211 as getting people to that

         23  process. 211 is a process that helps people

         24  understand their options and become aware of

         25  programs. IHSS is a little bit downstream from where
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          2  211 or comprehensive I&R might start to help

          3  customers. With respect to the funding, I saw the

          4  same line item you did, I don't have a great deal of

          5  clarity about how that line item is divided up. We

          6  are working with both the Mayor's office and OMB to

          7  get clarity around that. I can't speak to it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: All right. The

          9  other question is, I know that Senator Dole and

         10  Senator Clinton has some legislation. Is Judy

         11  Chester lobbying for that? Are you lobbying for

         12  that? Is the City lobbying for that?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHLOYER:

         14  Absolutely. I would direct the specifics about the

         15  lobbying effort to the intergovernmental office and

         16  the Mayor's office, but I am aware that we are

         17  following on that effort as well as have made a

         18  budget request to the State for support of the 211

         19  initiative as well.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL: I'm new to this

         21  so excuse me if I'm asking sort of an elementary

         22  question, but your statement doesn't make it

         23  entirely clear to me. Is the effort now on the

         24  City's part to have 311 incorporate 211 and be in

         25  essence a substitute for 211. Is that the idea?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHLOYER: I have

          3  to be careful on how I answer this to make sure that

          4  I am clear. 311, we believe, is because of our

          5  success in using 311 to expand awareness in

          6  knowledge of government information and services, we

          7  believe that 311 is the best point of entry for

          8  customers to get in and request for help. In fact,

          9  already we receive questions that would ordinarily

         10  be handled by a 211 service through 311. A good

         11  portion of our calls are calls for that type of help

         12  So we believe that 311 is the best point of entry

         13  and offers a lot of opportunity to leverage what

         14  we've done there to get customers this type of help.

         15                 That said, the skills required by our

         16  operators and the services that are provided are

         17  going to be quite different and we imagine them

         18  operating somewhat independently of the 311

         19  operators that are currently taking those calls.

         20  Does that answer your question?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: No. What are

         22  you saying? 211 as I gather it from looking at this

         23  material is a national initiative in many different

         24  places to provide access to various social services

         25  and private points of assistance. I could see two
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          2  models. One would be that at some point promote a

          3  separate 211 system in the City and perhaps when

          4  people call 311, if they ask for help that was

          5  relevant to a private agency, they would be referred

          6  to 211 or maybe even directly connected. Or that the

          7  211 system would be fully integrated with the 311

          8  system so that people wouldn't call 211, they would

          9  call 311 and the 311 operator would be trained to

         10  handle the 211 type of inquiries as well as the 311

         11  type inquiries. Which model is the one you are

         12  personally or maybe there is another model?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHLOYER: I would

         14  provide somewhat of a hybrid model. Absolutely we

         15  believe that 311 should be the point of entry for

         16  these services. Again, we have made a strong

         17  investment in raising awareness about 311. It's

         18  already used by lots of people as an entry point for

         19  this service. And we believe that using 311 as a

         20  point of entry not only is going to make it less

         21  confusing for customers, because there will be a

         22  single number to call. But also it allows us to

         23  leverage our technology as people come through that

         24  process to build out the 311 capability.

         25                 I want to be clear in saying that I
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          2  don't think the skills that we currently provide to

          3  our operators and the agents are taking calls at 311

          4  are sufficient to provide the level of service that

          5  is required for comprehensive line of service. We

          6  are certainly are going to have to have an

          7  organization that is staffed and trained to handle a

          8  different type of transaction for customers. That

          9  organization, I don't think it is determined yet

         10  whether or not that would be organizationally part

         11  of 311 or operate independently.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I think it

         13  would be interesting, I suppose to hear today also

         14  from some of the service providers which kind of

         15  model they think makes sense. I could see it might

         16  be just off the top of my head, might be preferable

         17  to have a separate 211 system and then have the 311

         18  operators refer people without even necessarily

         19  making another call. Now when you call 311 very

         20  often, the operator can't help you. They say, well I

         21  will connect you with the Sanitation Department or I

         22  will connect you with whatever it might be.

         23                 Similarly here, where you got a call

         24  that would appear to require private social

         25  services, they could say well, the Department of
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          2  Social Services might help you, but you should also

          3  try 211 which connects you with various voluntary

          4  agencies. It strikes me that might be preferable and

          5  also at one point, you overload people if you expect

          6  them to know too much. These operators are probably

          7  not PhD's. They don't have that much training and

          8  necessarily ability and if you give them too much to

          9  do, they don't do anything particularly well. I

         10  would be concerned about that. Although, maybe I'm

         11  under estimating them.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHLOYER: I think

         13  it is certainly a balance to strike between using

         14  operators effectively to handle a range of things

         15  and I think that there are ways that you can use

         16  technology to empower people, as we have at 311, to

         17  do a wide range of things. Certainly, I don't have

         18  in my mind all the services that are available for

         19  311. But our operators, given their training and

         20  their technology, are able to do a broad range of

         21  service provision already.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

         23  much. Those are good questions. I think they will be

         24  hashed out. There are also union issues which are

         25  extremely important to our City. My question finally
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          2  is, what is the database situation. In other words,

          3  is that something that's going to be worked out? We,

          4  obviously, as time goes on what to figure out ways

          5  that the database that you have for City agencies

          6  could somehow be part of maybe a larger non- profit

          7  database. But is that also going to be part of what

          8  some of this $50 million would be used for or

          9  whatever the amount is?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHLOYER:

         11  Absolutely. I think that we need to make a

         12  determination about what type of database needs to

         13  be constructed. Our partnership with United Way and

         14  the other participants in the planning process made

         15  an early on decision that we would adhere to

         16  specific standards in developing that database. At

         17  this time, the database that we use at 311 does not

         18  adhere to those. So there would have to be

         19  enhancements or the development of a new system in

         20  order to do that. I think that those commitments and

         21  those standards are important and valuable in the

         22  delivery of this service.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay. Do the you

         24  think the time line that has been outlined is

         25  realistic, 2007?

                                                            23

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHLOYER: I think

          3  that it is absolutely realistic to begin to phase in

          4  the delivery of these services. I think like 311 and

          5  I think that we will be delivering those services in

          6  2007, I think that like 311, the development of

          7  these services is going to be a work in progress for

          8  a number of years and we're going to see continued

          9  improvement and enhancement in what we do.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Do you think,

         11  again, we don't know what their site would be

         12  situation in terms of off site, on site? It is also

         13  my impression that at least in other systems, 211

         14  staffing is often case workers or social workers. It

         15  is perhaps a different model than some of your

         16  wonderful 311 operators who are extremely pleasant,

         17  but may not have the human service background. Do

         18  you know who the new hirees would work for or is

         19  that still to be determined?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHLOYER: First

         21  of all, let me thank you for the compliment of our

         22  311 staff. They work extraordinarily hard and have

         23  for the last three days given the snow. Absolutely,

         24  you are right. The 211, similar to the standards for

         25  the database, we have made a decision that we will
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          2  follow the standards in the development of training

          3  and certification of specialized I&R agents. They

          4  are to my understanding, not actually social

          5  workers, but often frequently have some training or

          6  some background in social work to create that

          7  distinction. Finally, it has not been determined

          8  what organization they would work for or where they

          9  would be staffed or sitting.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: All right. Any

         11  other questions, Council Member Koppell? Thank you

         12  very much. If you need to go, otherwise we are going

         13  to turn right to the folks who are implementing this

         14  system. Also, Gary do you want to start?

         15                 MR. WARTELS: Good morning, my name is

         16  Gary Wartels. I'm a consultant and I work with

         17  United Way of New York on the planning and

         18  implementation of 211 information and referral

         19  services in New York City. I would like to take this

         20  opportunity to thank Chairwoman Gail Brewer and the

         21  other council members on this Committee for their

         22  leadership on this important issue. I would also

         23  like to say that in addition to Valentine's Day, it

         24  is a very opportune week because it is also national

         25  211 week at the federal level.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Who would have

          3  known?

          4                 MR. WARTELS: Who would have known,

          5  right? A single mother trying to find a job in a

          6  tough economy, a frail senior citizen who needs help

          7  with transportation but has no family or friends to

          8  call, a substance abusing teen who in a moment of

          9  lucidity decides to seek a way out, a family with a

         10  loved one who called to war, an undocumented

         11  immigrant who needs immigration counseling and

         12  assistance. These are examples of human services

         13  needs that are seen every day in every borough. And

         14  while services may exist in our community, access to

         15  those services is an issue.

         16                 After a year- long planning process,

         17  co- chaired by United Way of New York City in

         18  partnership with New York City's Department of

         19  Telecommunications and Information Technology, and

         20  through which a 211 Blueprint was developed, Mayor

         21  Bloomberg announced on November 10, 2005, a

         22  significant partnership with United Way to expand

         23  the City's 311 system to include information and

         24  referrals to non- profit health and human service

         25  providers. A collaboration of the non- profit
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          2  community and City government will be formed that

          3  leverages the investment already made by New York

          4  City in 311 and the strength of the existing

          5  specialized I&Rs to build a new comprehensive

          6  information and referral system that brings together

          7  all of these assets.

          8                 Our partnership with DoITT, HRA and

          9  the non- profit community to enhance 311 with 211

         10  information referral services is the result of an

         11  extensive planning process that involved over 50

         12  non- profit, government, and private sector

         13  philanthropic leaders. United Way was asked to

         14  convene and financially support the 211 New York

         15  City Planning Process on behalf of many of the

         16  City's leading specialized information and referral

         17  providers who served at the time on New York City's

         18  211 Task Force. That is a sub- committee of New York

         19  State's Alliance Information and Referral System.

         20                 According to the Blueprint for 211 in

         21  New York City, United Way of New York City's

         22  proposed role will be to serve as the focal point of

         23  leadership from the non- profit community. In

         24  summary, the Blueprint represents a consensus of the

         25  211 NYC Planning Committee and outlines the broad-
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          2  based vision, mission, funding strategy, and partner

          3  roles and operating responsibilities.

          4                 211 type services in New York City

          5  will be distinctly different from, yet complementary

          6  to both 911, which provides access to fire, police,

          7  and medical response personnel in emergencies, and

          8  311, the primary access to non- emergency municipal

          9  services. 311 is designed to connect New Yorkers

         10  with the City government services they need. 211

         11  services provide comprehensive information and

         12  referral, with trained specialists who help assess

         13  the inquirer's needs and connect the caller with the

         14  broad range of health care and human services. This

         15  is the type of service enhancement that United Way

         16  working in partnership with DoITT would like to

         17  bring to the City's superb 311 system.

         18                 How could an expanded 311 system

         19  operate to include information and referral to the

         20  City's vast network of social services? Currently

         21  311 receives a number of 211 type calls, but there

         22  are many limitations on being able to address the

         23  issues of these calls. Once the comprehensive

         24  database is established, staff trained and

         25  technology in place, the 211 type calls received by
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          2  311 operators will be transferred to the 211 health

          3  and human service pod. Calls could come through the

          4  311 and be routed to the 211 staff, who will answer

          5  the inquiry or transfer directly to the specialized

          6  information referral provider.

          7                 To establish the service in New York

          8  City, United Way, DoITT, HRA and the non- profit

          9  information and referral providers will work

         10  together to prepare and submit the required

         11  application to obtain the 211 designation. The

         12  application is submitted to the 211 New York

         13  Collaborative, and once granted, enables the 211

         14  infrastructure to be put in place and the 211 number

         15  to be activated in the five boroughs. People who

         16  know about 211 will be able to dial directly and/or

         17  be transferred from the 311 entry point.

         18                 United Way of New York City has been

         19  a leader in the field of information referral for

         20  nearly two decades. United Way developed and

         21  currently maintains a database of more than 2,500

         22  non- profit health and human services agencies,

         23  operating more than 15,000 programs from more than

         24  7,200 sites. Our Community Access to Resources or

         25  CARES database was developed in collaboration with
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          2  the City's Human Resources Administration for use by

          3  social workers and case managers working for City

          4  government and non- profit agencies because there

          5  was no centralized source to locate community

          6  services. A pocket version was also developed for

          7  the City's police. Today, a public version is one of

          8  the most widely used sections on United Way's web

          9  site.

         10                 In the aftermath of September 11, the

         11  September 11 Fund established by United Way and the

         12  New York Community Trust, incubated and supported

         13  the United Services Group, the entity responsible

         14  for coordinating information, referral and services

         15  available to victims, families, and survivors of the

         16  attack. United Way is also the lead agency in a

         17  collaboration with New York State Department of

         18  Health and seven other hunger relief agencies to

         19  develop and manage FEED NYC, an extensive database

         20  that contains food, safety, fiscal, and resource

         21  information related to New York City's Emergency

         22  Food Relief Organization activities.

         23                 The addition of the health and human

         24  services component to 311 has the potential to

         25  revolutionize the way people in New York City have
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          2  access to these health and human services. This

          3  project will build on what 311 has done for

          4  government. That is, make it possible for

          5  individuals to get the information they need, when

          6  they need it, without spending unnecessary time and

          7  resources. United Way of New York welcomes the

          8  opportunity to use its leadership, capacity and its

          9  relationship to the 211 in New York State and

         10  nationally to make this happen. The partnership to

         11  enhance 311 with 211 information referral services

         12  (now available to over half the country's

         13  population) is a logical extension of United Way's

         14  capacity and will go a long way in providing all New

         15  Yorkers with one- stop access to vital services.

         16                 In closing, I would like to quote

         17  Larry Mandell, President of United Way who stated,

         18  every hour of every day New Yorkers need essential

         19  services; from finding quality care for a child or

         20  an aging parent to securing employment training.

         21  Unfortunately, too often people aren't sure where to

         22  turn and therefore go without. We are very pleased

         23  to put our in- depth working knowledge of the City's

         24  non- profit sector to such a practical use. Once

         25  again, thank you for your support, leadership, and
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          2  time on this critical issue.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you. Linda.

          4                 MS. DAILY: Good morning. My name is

          5  Linda Daily, presenting testimony on behalf of the

          6  211 New York Collaborative. We are working to bring

          7  211 to all New Yorkers who need help finding help.

          8  211 offers everyone who needs it one point of

          9  telephone access and the assurance of quality,

         10  professional response to their need. Thank you,

         11  Chairwoman Brewer and the Committee members for this

         12  opportunity to offer this testimony.

         13                 How does 211 help? The 211 system

         14  benefits individuals, communities, employers,

         15  service providers and governments by reducing

         16  confusion and unnecessary phone calls, saving time,

         17  developing valuable planning information and

         18  reducing pressure on the existing 911 emergency

         19  response system. 211 is a proven, cost- effective

         20  step to getting people the help they need and

         21  getting to people who want to help those in need.

         22                 When you dial 211 for help, trained

         23  information and referral professionals conduct a

         24  caring interview to help assess priorities and offer

         25  community resources as options to meet the caller's
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          2  needs. A national training curricula forms the basis

          3  of staff training including modules on active

          4  listening, assisting callers who are in difficult or

          5  dangerous situations, how to retrieve information

          6  from the comprehensive database covering all

          7  categories of health and human services, as well as

          8  confidentiality policies.

          9                 Additional modules on local, state

         10  and federal laws impacting service eligibility and

         11  accessibility are important aspects of the training.

         12  Protocols for triaging calls with 911, 311 and

         13  specialized information and referral partners are

         14  also detailed. According to the national standards

         15  for accreditation, at least 25 percent of the staff

         16  must attain professional certification. That's a

         17  minimum.

         18                 The assessment process is much more

         19  than simply providing a telephone number. For

         20  example, during the assessment interview, we may

         21  learn that a caller requesting financial assistance

         22  may have other needs, often overwhelming due to a

         23  job lay off. The I&R specialist probes with the

         24  caller to determine what the primary needs are:

         25  Food, shelter, clothing, job retraining, et cetera,
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          2  and provides them with connections to appropriate

          3  services.

          4                 The I&R professional is skilled in

          5  using a comprehensive, computerized, detailed up-

          6  to- date database of community resources as the tool

          7  to quickly retrieve very specific services which

          8  meet the caller's needs such as the availability at

          9  certain times of the day, on specific days of the

         10  week, offered by someone who speaks their language,

         11  or at a location close to or far away from their

         12  home or place of business.

         13                 While callers may choose to be

         14  anonymous or not, confidentiality is guaranteed

         15  except in cases of imminent danger. Basic

         16  information is collected to document need and

         17  register the caller's characteristics as appropriate

         18  including, gender, age, zip code, language

         19  requirements, caller type (such as individual,

         20  family member, professional, et cetera), and how

         21  they heard about the 211 service. A percentage of

         22  the callers who provide permission receive follow-

         23  up calls to determine whether the information was

         24  helpful. Whether they were able to obtain services

         25  and whether the information was accurate and
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          2  appropriate. The aggregate data collected can be

          3  shared with policy makers and planners to better

          4  serve their constituencies.

          5                 By way of a very brief background, in

          6  July 2000, the Federal Communications Commission

          7  assigned 211 to be the three- digit telephone number

          8  for community information and referral nationwide.

          9  The order establishes the rationale and lead role

         10  for the not- for- profit sector in that "individuals

         11  facing serious threats to life, health, and mental

         12  well being have urgent and critical needs that are

         13  not addressed by calling 911 for emergency

         14  assistance or 311 for non- emergency police

         15  assistance."

         16                 Today, 211 serves over 40 percent of

         17  the U.S. Population through 171 active 211 systems

         18  covering all or part of 32 states, plus Washington,

         19  DC and Puerto Rico. In New York State, the first two

         20  call centers went live in 2005. 211 is vital because

         21  it provides an easy to remember universal access to

         22  information about and referral to health and human

         23  services. Efficiencies in service delivery increase

         24  by directing people to the right place and easing

         25  the burden of exploration calls on agencies. Service
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          2  providers gain a way to connect their clients with

          3  other services. 211 becomes an integral part of the

          4  emergency preparedness, complementing disaster

          5  response and helping take the burden off first

          6  responders, 911 and 311. It provides data on trends

          7  in needs and gaps in services for use in planning

          8  and resource allocation.

          9                 Additionally, 211 has proven to be a

         10  critical resource aiding long- term recovery in

         11  times of disaster including in Louisiana and Texas

         12  following Hurricane Katrina, where 211's are

         13  statewide systems. In New York State, leadership for

         14  the development of 211 is coming from the United Way

         15  of New York State and the New York State Alliance of

         16  Information and Referral Systems, known as NYS AIRS.

         17  In January 2002, the New York State Public Service

         18  Commission authorized the 211 New York Collaborative

         19  to plan for and implement 211 across New York State.

         20  They have adopted an approach that will result in

         21  the development of eight regional call systems.

         22                 In New York State today, 211 service

         23  is available in four counties in the greater

         24  Rochester area and in the seven counties of the

         25  lower Hudson Valley adjacent to New York City. More
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          2  than 14,000 calls were received in the Finger Lakes

          3  first 12 months of operation. 211 Hudson Valley

          4  began service last September as Katrina hit. More

          5  than 800 calls were received in its first week of

          6  operation. The western New York Collaborative also

          7  has received the 211 designation and is gearing up

          8  for service in 2006. They will be housed in the

          9  Emergency Management Services building in Buffalo

         10  having developed an excellent working relationship

         11  in response to natural snow emergencies, which

         12  affect their region with some frequency. In addition

         13  to New York City, the other regions are defined as

         14  capital which is Albany, Long Island, central,

         15  southern and the north country.

         16                 One of our most important goals is to

         17  promote the highest national professional standards

         18  and a consistent level of quality among the 211

         19  regions. Our statewide policy board has established

         20  policies and procedures including, adherence to the

         21  national Alliance of Information and Referral

         22  Standards; use of a standard classification

         23  system/taxonomy for indexing database records;

         24  certification of professionals answering calls and

         25  developing and maintaining resource databases;
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          2  accreditation of the organizations operating 211's;

          3  and the provisions for mutual back up and assistance

          4  and call re- routing for short term emergency

          5  situations. Before using the 211 number, the

          6  regional applications must be tested against these

          7  high national standards and be approved for use by

          8  the Policy Board.

          9                 In conclusion, I'd like to stress

         10  that collaboration is at the core of New York's 211

         11  system building. As stated in the Blueprint for 211

         12  in New York City, September 2005, the result of a

         13  year long planning process including City agencies,

         14  not- for- profits, the United Way and DoITT, you

         15  have a unique opportunity in New York City to build

         16  a new model for 211 as a partnership of the

         17  nonprofit community, City government and existing

         18  I&R providers that target their services to a

         19  specific segment of the population and/or specific

         20  problem or issue area.

         21                 It is reassuring that the outcome of

         22  this unique partnership will be an expanded and

         23  seamless, customer focused information system with

         24  211 service complementing 311 and 911 services.

         25  Thank you so very much for your interest in this
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          2  opportunity.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

          4  much. We are honored and delighted to have been

          5  joined by Council Member James Sanders from Queens.

          6  Thank you, sir. I have a couple of questions and

          7  then hopefully Council Member does also. For Gary,

          8  my question for you is, do you know what the current

          9  status of funding is except what we heard earlier

         10  from DoITT and the second question I have is, it is

         11  with all due respect to Linda Daily and the

         12  wonderful national work, we are much more

         13  complicated here in New York. My question is, I'm

         14  always concerned and certainly Lillian Roberts will

         15  speak for herself as a member of DC 37, but I'm

         16  always concerned, I don't want to lose any City

         17  workers by this program. I feel very strongly about

         18  that. I do think that thanks to DC 37 and to DoITT,

         19  there has been a good relationship between the 311

         20  staff which as I said earlier, I find to be

         21  extremely pleasant and professional. The work that

         22  they do for the City and as a members of the union

         23  and so there is concern about what this would look

         24  like in terms of a union or not shop. My questions

         25  are first about the funding and second, have you
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          2  thought about the staffing or is that just too early

          3  to comment on?

          4                 MR. WARTELS: Yes, we thought

          5  certainly about the funding. On the specifics on the

          6  funding right now, I don't know anymore than what

          7  Assistant Commissioner said. But, it is United Way's

          8  position that in order to undertake a project like

          9  this, it wouldn't really need to fundamentally be

         10  government funded. And that United Way's role would

         11  be to bring private, because of its relationship

         12  with private philanthropic organizations, that we

         13  would work to help build the capacity of the non-

         14  profit information referral providers through some

         15  private fund raising. In terms of the specifics on

         16  the funding, we don't know any more than what was

         17  just asked.

         18                 In addition to that, United Way of

         19  New York City is working with NYS AIRS and the New

         20  York State Collaborative to get a statewide funding

         21  request. Of which, right now as it is currently laid

         22  out, it is about a $6.9 million request. If that

         23  does happen in this fiscal year --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Is it capital or

         25  expense?
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          2                 MR. WARTELS: It is a combination of

          3  capital and expense. About $3.9 million of that

          4  would come to New York City.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay. In terms of

          6  some of the staffing issues that I asked about.

          7                 MR. WARTELS: On the staffing issues,

          8  United Way has also enjoyed a strong relationship

          9  with labor. Brian McLaughlin sits on United Way of

         10  New York City's Board, but it is just really way too

         11  early to even figure out how this is going to be

         12  staffed and implemented. We're just really not there

         13  yet.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay. Do you feel

         15  that the 311 number will work in terms of pass

         16  through, so to speak, to the 211 number. I don't

         17  know if this exist, Linda, in any other parts of the

         18  country, I think not. This is the Gino Menchino

         19  version of life.

         20                 MR. WARTELS: Right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: That's an inside

         22  joke for those who don't know Gino Menchino, I

         23  explain later. But the question is, if this is to

         24  work, would one be able to dial directly to 211 or

         25  dial only through 311 and do you see the need if
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          2  this happens as presently suggested to ever have a

          3  separate 211. Again, these may be early questions,

          4  but what's been the thought process here.

          5                 MR. WARTELS: Again, what was laid out

          6  in the planning process and through the Blueprint,

          7  as you said New York City is very complicated and

          8  unlike any other place in the country. There really

          9  is no other City where such an extensive 311 exists.

         10  Los Angeles has a very small one and there is a

         11  couple of other areas. But through the planning

         12  process, what we really came too is that initially

         13  the concept is that calls would come through 311.

         14  The 211 number would be activated and that people

         15  that know about the 211 number can call directly.

         16  But initially calls would be handled through the 311

         17  and then seamlessly transferred over to the health

         18  and human services pod.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: All right.

         20  Council Members, do you have any questions? Go

         21  ahead, Council Member Sanders.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Thank you,

         23  Madam Chair. I commend you for such a very worthy

         24  hearing and I want to join you that I'm interested

         25  that this endeavor, this 211 endeavor that we will
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          2  journey, if you wish, that New York City is taking

          3  should remain in the house of labor; that it is a

          4  useful thing for all parties concerned. Here is my

          5  question. One of my critiques of the 311 system is

          6  and was the lack of information sharing with

          7  community boards and the City Council. How will the

          8  211 system differ from that?

          9                 MR. WARTELS: We'll probably both take

         10  a stab at this. Under 211, there are national

         11  guidelines and one of the unique things about 211

         12  are that they fundamentally fall within the private

         13  non- profit sphere. Not universally, there is

         14  certainly strong partners in the country. But in

         15  doing so, one of the guidelines is that the

         16  information that is gathered by 211's is incredibly

         17  useful for policy makers.

         18                 It is actually our thought that it

         19  will be transparently available to policy makers,

         20  not individual records. But if every month we see a

         21  huge spike in the number of calls that are coming

         22  from a particular area for food, that that

         23  information could readily be made available to

         24  policy makers.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Any mechanism
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          2  to be put in place? That's the same argument that we

          3  had for the 311 and we all in one sense understood

          4  it going out, but there was nothing put in place to

          5  ensure this. Therefore, we still have a disconnect

          6  if there is a spike in the amount of snow coming in

          7  my district, in one area let's say, and 311 gets

          8  this information, I don't get this information. How

          9  will this differ? If you're not putting in some

         10  mechanism, then it will just remain a good idea that

         11  just never was acted upon.

         12                 MR. WARTELS: I can't speak to 311,

         13  but other 211's around the country, the information

         14  is actually available on the website. If you look at

         15  Connecticut's statewide 211 system, they make their

         16  statistics widely available. Anybody who asks for it

         17  can receive it. It is actually available on their

         18  website.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Let me just

         20  press that one bit and since you were kind enough to

         21  mention the web, wouldn't it be a logical thing

         22  under those conditions if 211 sent us a e- mail for

         23  that matter. If it is the website that we use and

         24  that's the device that you like, then why not send

         25  the community boards and the Council an e- mail or
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          2  some variation of this if there is some information.

          3  You see, we're all in government together in theory

          4  and to say to us you can go to the web, is just a

          5  little bit more disconnected than perhaps you wish

          6  and that we want.

          7                 MS. DAILY: If I may add, the New York

          8  State 211 Collaborative decided on a certain set of

          9  data elements for the kinds of information we will

         10  collect uniformly across the State. And using the

         11  common taxonomy across the State, we can also can

         12  give you those kinds of statistics on what were the

         13  cause about in which geographic area by what age,

         14  and what language is requested and so forth. It is

         15  part of the national standards for 211 to be able to

         16  make that information available to policy makers

         17  such as yourself.

         18                 The question I think from the get go

         19  would be, how frequently would you like it and what

         20  mechanism would you like it and if there is anything

         21  else that we haven't planned to collect information

         22  on, what would those things be so that as the data

         23  base is being developed for the 211 part of it, that

         24  we clearly can capture that kind of information and

         25  create the reports that you are requiring so we can
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          2  get them out to you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: I just want to

          4  follow up. Council Member Sanders is correct. We've

          5  been joined by Council Member Bill DeBlasio from

          6  Brooklyn and General Welfare. He is quite familiar

          7  with what we are talking about. My question though

          8  is make sure as we proceed, if we do proceed, that

          9  there is a geographic designation, with all due

         10  respect, to upstate and wherever those other places,

         11  211. Council Member Sanders district is bigger than

         12  most of those upstate places. What didn't happen

         13  under 311 is it wasn't configured so that we could

         14  get the policy for Council Member Sanders' district.

         15                 We can get it for the borough. That

         16  doesn't do him any good in Rockaway. That's what I'm

         17  saying. It is a very different thought process than

         18  the national which would be okay, all of Shumin

         19  county. There are more people in his district than

         20  in Shumin county. What I'm saying, it has to be a

         21  different approach.

         22                 MR. WARTELS: Right.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: That's what is

         24  forgotten. People think borough, they think City,

         25  but they don't understand it is community board and
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          2  council district or whatever the decision is. It is

          3  a different thought process. 311 did not do that. We

          4  passed a law, it's law. We are waiting for the

          5  configuration. Thank you.

          6                 MR. WARTELS: Thank you.

          7                 MS. DAILY: Thank you.

          8                 MR. WARTELS: Those are great

          9  suggestions.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Council Member

         11  DeBlasio, do you have any questions? My other

         12  question then, what is your understanding of the

         13  schedule of this? The one that we outlined earlier,

         14  does that appear to be the one that you are working

         15  on?

         16                 MR. WARTELS: Right now, yes. I would

         17  actually defer to DoITT and 311 on the schedule of

         18  it at this point, so yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: And building this

         20  database, that was understood to be also part of

         21  DoITT's capital plan. In other words, to build the

         22  database that would be appropriate and to maintain

         23  it, what you are saying is that should be done by

         24  government. Is that your position?

         25                 MR. WARTELS: That I think needs to be
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          2  still worked out. Our position is that it should be

          3  a partnership that what United Way would bring to

          4  this is its CARES database. There is also a number

          5  of other non- profits that have very good databases

          6  that while they are not necessarily built along AIRS

          7  infoline taxonomy, the data that's in them could be

          8  very useful. I think it really needs to be done as a

          9  partnership moving forward between United Way and

         10  the other information and referral providers that

         11  are in the City.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Is it clear yet

         13  who would own the data or who would maintain the

         14  data?

         15                 MR. WARTELS: Still to be worked out.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Those are pretty

         17  major issues. Any other questions? Linda, go ahead.

         18                 MS. DAILY: Just also, because who

         19  owns the data is an issue across the State, we've

         20  also worked out guidelines for communities to take a

         21  look at and think about and adopt, we hope.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Would be an

         23  example of a guideline?

         24                 MS. DAILY: If you have developed a

         25  database, even maintaining it for years, and the
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          2  memorandum of understanding for sharing that data

          3  with others, you can negotiate whether or not there

          4  will be a fee for it. You can negotiate what not,

          5  but that data that resides in your database, you

          6  still own. If all the database is being paid for by

          7  a single entity, that's a whole different ballgame.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: There is lots to

          9  be discussed.

         10                 MS. DAILY: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you both

         12  very much.

         13                 MR. WARTELS: Thank you.

         14                 MS. DAILY: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: I appreciate it.

         16  Our next panel, we're going to go quickly to Lillian

         17  Roberts at the District Council 37; Henry Garrido

         18  who is the Assistant Director of DC 37, and Eddie

         19  Rodriguez, President of Local 1549, District Council

         20  37. Good morning, begin whenever you wish. Thank you

         21  for being here.

         22                 MS. ROBERTS: Thank you for inviting

         23  us. On behalf of the 121,000 members and 50,000

         24  retirees of District Council 37, I want to thank the

         25  Chair of the Committee on Technology in Government,
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          2  Gail Brewer, as well as other Committee members for

          3  the opportunity to testify before you today. Joining

          4  me is Eddie Rodriguez --

          5                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Good morning.

          6                 MS. ROBERTS: -- President of Local

          7  1549, who represents New York City Clerical

          8  Administrative employees, and Henry Garrido,

          9  Assistant Associate Director of District Council 37.

         10                 MR. GARRIDO: Good morning.

         11                 MS. ROBERTS: I'm here today to

         12  express our concern about the recent initiatives by

         13  the Department of Information Technology and

         14  Telecommunications known as DoITT, the Human

         15  Resources Administration (HRA) and the United Way of

         16  New York City to augment the City's existing 311

         17  call center to allow non- profit groups to provide

         18  information about social services.

         19                 Since 311's inception in March 2003,

         20  300 trained call center representatives, represented

         21  by Local 1549 have handled calls, and complaints

         22  from callers 24 hours a day, seven days a week. The

         23  majority of the calls are directed to 59 Maiden Lane

         24  in lower Manhattan, which is the City operated

         25  facility. The remaining calls are directed to the
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          2  overflow center in Long Island City run by a

          3  contractor, King Teleservices, Inc. I will speak

          4  more about the contract later.

          5                 District Council 37 believes 311 is a

          6  great system and provides an excellent service to

          7  the citizens of New York City by allowing them to

          8  log their complaints with specific agencies.

          9  District Council 37 members who are required to live

         10  within the five boroughs utilize the 311 system.

         11  Therefore, our concerns are both in the job security

         12  of those members and their privacy as users. That is

         13  why we believe that since the City announced its

         14  partnership with the United Way in January 2006,

         15  many issues need to be addressed.

         16                 First of all, we do not support the

         17  idea of using public funds for contracts. That

         18  includes diverting funds to create contract

         19  opportunities to the non- profit sector resulting in

         20  the displacement of public employees. Whether

         21  intended or not, a previous proposal by the United

         22  Way to create a parallel workforce supported with

         23  public funds from the 311 system suggested just

         24  that. We believe public money is best used for

         25  public services when public employees, who are
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          2  accountable to the City, perform essential services.

          3                 Let me be clear, we do not have any

          4  animosity toward the United Way. Our parent

          5  organization, AFSCME, District Council 37, as well

          6  as many of our members contribute to the United Way;

          7  but we are concerned about the possibility of United

          8  Way displacing our members with this expanded

          9  calling system.

         10                 Secondly, a parallel workforce hired

         11  and supervised by the United Way would deny

         12  promotional opportunities to the many clericals in

         13  our City who have used the civil service and merit

         14  system to give rise to upward mobility. It also

         15  denies much needed positions for the Job Training

         16  Participants who are coming out of the welfare rolls

         17  and are in need of job placement.

         18                 Thirdly, we are concerned about the

         19  confidentiality and the privacy of the citizens of

         20  New York City. During this whole discussion of this

         21  new partnership, there has not been any discussion

         22  pertaining to confidentiality of information of

         23  users of the new system. As City employees, District

         24  Council 37 members are accountable to public

         25  scrutiny and deliver services to the clients with
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          2  confidentiality.

          3                 Lastly, I'd like to address the City

          4  contract with King Teleservices, Inc., for 311

          5  services. Even though the City contract with King

          6  Teleservices is $9 million per year, DoITT computer

          7  personnel are still responsible for providing the

          8  technical assistance to the King Teleservices, Inc.

          9  Computer system. In addition, the City is required

         10  to pay $5 million for an insurance policy premium

         11  for the contractor's call in service in Long Island

         12  City. The contract also provides funds for initial

         13  and on- going training of the staff at King

         14  Teleservices, Inc. For an additional $300.000.

         15                 The intent of the contract with King

         16  Teleservices was to handle the overflow calls to the

         17  311 system since the City was not able to gauge the

         18  number of calls it was going to receive. Please keep

         19  in mind, the original contract was set to expire on

         20  February 28, 2005, and has been extended by the

         21  City. We do not understand the City's need to

         22  continue with the contract given the increased

         23  hiring of Local 1549 members to handle the incoming

         24  calls to 311. This contract is inconsistent with the

         25  shift of City policy to contract in technology
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          2  services in order to save money.

          3                 On February, 2005, my office

          4  delivered productivity proposals to the Office of

          5  Labor Relations including a comparative analysis

          6  showing that contracting in the services provided by

          7  King Teleservices Inc., would save the City between

          8  $3.5 and $5.4 million during the length of the

          9  contract. Furthermore, King Teleservices, Inc., has

         10  been accused of utilizing anti- union methods and

         11  using intimidation tactics against its workers who

         12  tried to be organized by the various unions.

         13                 It is the position of District

         14  Council 37 that City employees must maintain the

         15  City's essential services, which impact the quality

         16  of life. We take pride in the fact that our members

         17  serving in over 1,000 titles in many City agencies,

         18  are at the forefront of delivering these services to

         19  the citizens of this City. We are the union that

         20  makes this City run.

         21                 Once again, thank you for the

         22  opportunity to testify today and I would be happy to

         23  take any questions you may have.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you.

         25  Council Member DeBlasio.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: Thank you,

          3  Madam Chair and let me also thank you for putting

          4  together this hearing. As usual, you are on the

          5  cutting edge of where our City needs to go to

          6  provide services to its people. Ms. Roberts, I'm

          7  concerned, you raised a very good point here. And

          8  first let me commend you and the folks you represent

          9  for having made 311 a success. You raised a very

         10  good point about the difference in the type of

         11  career opportunities that would be provided for

         12  folks who are in the unionized public sector versus

         13  folks in non- profits. I'm hearing this thought for

         14  the first time. I just wanted to ask you, what kinds

         15  of discussions have happened, if any, between DC 37

         16  and United Way to see if there might be some

         17  collaboration on this?

         18                 MS. ROBERTS: I have spoke to them on

         19  many occasions and I'll have my assistant also to

         20  respond to you and we expressed our concerns. They

         21  claim that they are not out to take union jobs, but

         22  I don't think they understand that there is very

         23  limited opportunities for our members to move up.

         24  This is what we're talking about. In addition to

         25  that, we have individuals who need the entry level
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          2  positions and we are willing to help train them. We

          3  have over 3,000 job training participants. These are

          4  welfare recipients and many of them are guilty of

          5  being on welfare merely because they don't have a

          6  job and they are coming off welfare. We want to be

          7  able to place them. That's our responsibility.

          8                 In addition to that, there is over 50

          9  percent of black males that don't have jobs. We are

         10  looking to try to aid these individuals in the

         11  training mode so they can get into the job force and

         12  the members that are currently in the job force that

         13  we represent can look forward to promotions.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: I just

         15  wanted to note, I obviously have tremendous respect

         16  for United Way and the service they provide and I

         17  think there is an obvious argument that given the

         18  sensitivities of the types of services that would be

         19  included under 211, that it is very important if

         20  people who are trained and have a particular

         21  background. But I also think you make a very good

         22  point about trying to afford people a career track

         23  which is something I think objectively non- profits

         24  have a harder time with just because of size and

         25  organizational structure. I would hope that the
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          2  Administration would embrace the idea of some real

          3  dialogue between the Administration, the United Way

          4  and DC 37 to see if there might be some common

          5  ground in this.

          6                 MS. ROBERTS: I think anything short

          7  of them being union members is hard to talk about

          8  that because we aid in the training, we have the

          9  funds for the training and we're concerned about

         10  their rights being protected in the process.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: Thank you.

         12                 MR. GARRIDO: If I may, Councilman, in

         13  addition --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: You need to

         15  introduce yourself.

         16                 MR. GARRIDO: I'm sorry. Good morning,

         17  my name is Henry Garrido. I'm the Assistant

         18  Associate Director in DC 37. In addition to 300

         19  training representatives of 311, District Council 37

         20  also represents a variety of titles that provide and

         21  are trained in a variety of cases. You are familiar

         22  with some of the social services title that we

         23  represent. We also have over 1,600 eligibility

         24  specialists that worked throughout the agencies to

         25  provide multiple of services. Even if the argument
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          2  holds true that there is some specific skills needed

          3  in order to provide the services for the human

          4  services side, we represent those individuals doing

          5  the services now. We are not opposed to expanding

          6  the system to include the non- profit sector and

          7  some of the other services that we know are needed,

          8  but we are opposed with any displacement of our

          9  members and any individuals.

         10                 Just to highlight to that, there was

         11  some discussion earlier about the Blueprint that was

         12  delivered in September 2005. In that plan, there is

         13  specific proposals of, I don't remember, to the tune

         14  of $64 million that would come out of the general

         15  budget of 311 and it included line items for the

         16  hiring and the training of staff by the United Way.

         17  Even though the decision has not been made by the

         18  City, there has been an attempt at least in our

         19  knowledge to create that kind of parallel workforce.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: Madam Chair,

         21  a quick follow up. Thank you. I'm confused by that

         22  not because you were not clear. But I just want to

         23  make sure I understand the ramifications. Are you

         24  saying that the City and/or the United Way have

         25  ruled out a unionized workforce? Are you saying that
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          2  decision has not been made yet?

          3                 MR. GARRIDO: No, I believe in the

          4  early testimony, the City indicated that the

          5  decision has not been made yet.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: Okay. So

          7  that's a live question?

          8                 MR. GARRIDO: Right. But what I was

          9  referring to was a Blueprint that was delivered to

         10  the City proposing the outline, the implementation

         11  of a 211 system which included individual items

         12  included a proposal budget that outlined positions

         13  that would be staffed, trained and supervised

         14  essentially by the United Way.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: I'd just

         16  like to note and again it is the first time I'm ever

         17  hearing any of this, but there is obviously a huge

         18  difference between training or even recruiting or

         19  supervising and the composition of the workforce.

         20  I'm am sympathetic to your position obviously

         21  because of the quality of the work provided by your

         22  workers and because of the opportunity for a career

         23  track. I'd be interested to hear a definitive

         24  statement from either the Administration or the

         25  United Way on this matter. But if what basically is
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          2  happening at this point is that people are keeping

          3  their options opened, it is possible in theory to

          4  have a public/private partnership or public/non-

          5  profit partnership between United Way and the City

          6  that still could involve unionized workers.

          7                 MR. GARRIDO: Yes, that's actually

          8  correct. As I said, there are many proposals, that's

          9  one of the questions that we have.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: Okay.

         11                 MR. GARRIDO: One of the concerns that

         12  still needs to be addressed, what the make up of the

         13  workforce is going to be. Who is going to represent

         14  them? Or they going to be unionized? Those

         15  automatically represent a displacement of the

         16  already 300 or so 311 operators that we have or does

         17  it mean an additional number of workforce and how

         18  that's going to play out. I think that's one of the

         19  questions that remains to be answered.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: I'll just

         21  finish by saying, I think a lot of us would be very

         22  interested in seeing if there is a way to take

         23  United Way's expertise and the capacity of your

         24  workers and the advantages of the unionized

         25  workforce and marry those two things together.
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          2  Hopefully, that option exists. Thank you, Madam

          3  Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you.

          5  Council Member Sanders.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Thank you,

          7  Madam Chair. I stated earlier that I was much in

          8  support of the efforts being unionized at the House

          9  of Labor certainly needs to have its proper seat in

         10  the 211 equation. Now, I really don't see the

         11  contradiction. I don't see the problem and perhaps

         12  the Administration will share with me at another day

         13  where this can be. If you are saying that we need

         14  more skills, then I'm sure if the Administration

         15  were kind enough to share with DC 37, there is great

         16  trainers out there and you will get the skilled

         17  people necessary.

         18                 The United Way is also an esteemed

         19  organization and it is an organization which adapts

         20  to change quite well. They are partners with the New

         21  York City Council as everyone knows and New York

         22  City works. That is the effort to attack the

         23  structural unemployment that our Executive Director

         24  was so kind enough to remind all of us about over

         25  and over; that New York City has a quiet crisis that
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          2  we really need to address. As we solve other

          3  problems, we can use the same devices to attack

          4  these quiet crises that we find ourselves in.

          5                 I believe that United Way will be a

          6  willing partner and I urge the United Way to

          7  continue to pick up the pace of the conversations

          8  with DC 37 and the Administration on this. Because

          9  we should not allow ourselves to be sidetracked. The

         10  issue is the best way to provide for the people of

         11  New York City. We should not provide the best way

         12  and yet deprive New Yorkers of a very much a living

         13  wage and the ability to live and cooperate and deal

         14  in New York City.

         15                 On the issue of any agency or the

         16  allegation against King Teleservices, Inc., I urge

         17  the proper agency to look into this matter to make

         18  sure that union busting and intimidation tactics are

         19  not being used. That we need to make sure that we

         20  have an even playing field for all New Yorkers here.

         21  I wanted to, of course, commend DC 37 for speaking

         22  for the people, for the workers of New York and

         23  commend the United Way for trying to get to those

         24  disenfranchise New Yorkers and the Administration

         25  for that matter, if we are putting together this
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          2  project, let's put it together the right way. Let's

          3  solve the problems in the very beginning so later on

          4  we don't have to go through this again and again and

          5  again. Thank you very much. Thank you, Madam Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

          7  much. I just want to echo the words that my

          8  colleagues have stated that we look forward to

          9  working with DC 37. We look forward to working with

         10  United Way. We look forward to a partnership that

         11  has enough services for New Yorkers. The first run

         12  to me is always a City agency. The second run is a

         13  non- profit. Because I think the City agencies are

         14  often able to handle sometimes the more complicated

         15  issues, but not necessarily the neighborhood issues.

         16  As somebody who has worked in an office that handles

         17  complaints for many years, my first call is to a

         18  City agency.

         19                 I hope that we can work it out

         20  because I believe strongly that if as a City worker

         21  because of funding and because of the structure of

         22  the union and the civil service system, you do have

         23  more chance for moving up and for a career ladder

         24  than unfortunately we do as workers in the non-

         25  profit sector. You have, thanks to your union, done
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          2  an incredible job working with DoITT to

          3  professionalize the individuals who are handling the

          4  myriad of calls to 311. I am a constant caller. My

          5  constituents are a constant caller. And it is a very

          6  positive feedback. Congratulations to the work that

          7  you have put in there and it would be nice to have

          8  any future system to have the same praises.

          9                 The question is, I look forward to

         10  working with you and to effectuate your needs for

         11  your workers, no displacement, future career ladders

         12  for those who are coming in and who are moving up. I

         13  believe very strongly that's the only way this

         14  system is going to work. It is too complicated to do

         15  it where somebody is coming and going and where

         16  there is a constant funding, constant

         17  professionalization which I believe is what you can

         18  provide. That kind of ability to be there for the

         19  long term. I look forward to this. I'm glad you

         20  brought it to our attention. I also feel very

         21  strongly that United Way did a great job in jumping

         22  in off a cliff, sort to speak, because it is clear

         23  where we are going. We just know that we all want to

         24  help individuals in New York who have got safety net

         25  issues. We want to make sure that they are on their
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          2  feet quickly and that is what your workers do, that

          3  is what New Yorkers do, and we want to work with

          4  you. Thank you very much.

          5                 MS. ROBERTS: I want to thank you very

          6  much. I guess we are very passionate about

          7  particularly the welfare recipients. We have over

          8  3,000 in our union and we are dedicated to helping

          9  them to get a stable foothold and the only way that

         10  can happen is through the training and all the

         11  things necessary so that they can be placed. We

         12  don't want and we shouldn't be thinking of any of

         13  them as secondary to anybody. They just haven't had

         14  the opportunity and we want to see that they get it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

         16  much. Thank you, Madam President. Our next panel is

         17  Rima Cohen, Vice President of Greater New York

         18  Hospital Fund and John Greiner, Chief Technology

         19  Office of Legal Services of New York. And also, Leah

         20  Margulies, Project Director of LawHelp.org/NYC and

         21  if Richard Murphy is here, I don't see him from Food

         22  Change. Thank you. Who would like to begin?

         23                 MS. COHEN: I'm happy too.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay. Just

         25  introduce yourself and welcome.
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          2                 MS. COHEN: Good morning, Chairperson

          3  Brewer and Council Member Sanders. My name is Rima

          4  Cohen. I am the Vice President for Insurance Options

          5  for the Uninsured at Greater New York Hospital

          6  Foundation which is the grant funded affiliate of

          7  Greater New York Hospital Association. Our

          8  foundation develops grant funded initiatives that

          9  are broad interest to the healthcare community,

         10  particularly with respect to access to care for the

         11  under served. The division that I oversee, Insurance

         12  Options for the Uninsured, has the sole mission of

         13  developing and implementing strategies to expand

         14  health insurance coverage in New York. Health

         15  insurance coverage and access, I should say. As you

         16  know, our parent organization represents all of the

         17  public and non- profit hospitals in New York and

         18  surrounding areas.

         19                 Greater New York Hospital Foundation,

         20  which I'll herein refer to as the Foundation, is

         21  very enthusiastic about this initiative to expand

         22  311 services to include non- profit health and human

         23  services. Our interest in this goes beyond the fact

         24  that our member hospitals provide health and social

         25  services on a daily basis. The main reason for our
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          2  interest in this initiative is because Greater New

          3  York Hospital Foundation developed and launched a

          4  project called, the Health Information Tool for

          5  Empowerment or HITE, as we call it, a year ago after

          6  many years of development.

          7                 I will be going through a power point

          8  presentation with you to describe the project which

          9  Chairperson Brewer has already seen. But I don't

         10  believe we have had the opportunity to show Council

         11  Member Sanders yet. HITE is the first and only web

         12  based tool that is designed specifically to link

         13  low- income under served New Yorkers with the range

         14  of free and low- cost health and social services

         15  that are available to them. It is a grant funded

         16  project and it was developed in collaboration with

         17  three coalitions of community- based health and

         18  social service organizations in New York. It is

         19  currently being piloted tested in the borough of

         20  Brooklyn, Manhattan and a seven county region in

         21  upstate New York.

         22                 An enhanced 311 system is an ideal

         23  complement to a tool like HITE. Since its launch one

         24  year ago in Brooklyn and Manhattan as a pilot test,

         25  HITE has helped thousands of health and social
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          2  service professionals and their clients identify a

          3  wide range of health and social services; including

          4  clinics with sliding fee scales, support services

          5  for immigrants, financial assistant for cancer

          6  patients and so forth. While it was developed

          7  primarily for health and social services

          8  professionals, the web site is free and it is

          9  available to the public and many consumers are using

         10  it directly to find services for themselves and

         11  their family members. The depth and breadth of

         12  information that we have in HITE is unmatched in any

         13  single database that we have been able to find in

         14  New York.

         15                 We appreciate that you called today's

         16  hearing so that we can share with the Committee some

         17  of the insights that we gleaned over the many years

         18  that it actually took us to implement this tool so

         19  we can help you plan a successful 311 expansion. I'm

         20  going to discuss very briefly the challenge of

         21  providing City residents with comprehensive and

         22  accurate information on non- profit services and

         23  then I will show you some examples of HITE. You have

         24  my testimony, a longer written testimony and a full

         25  power point presentation. I will just go through the
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          2  highlights. I will not go through it page by page.

          3                 Greater New York Hospital Foundation

          4  developed HITE when back in 1999, we came up with

          5  the idea when we were actually working on the Family

          6  Health Plus Program on designing the program and we

          7  noticed as we were talking with health and social

          8  service professionals that when they were helping

          9  their clients, they were using outdated, dog eared

         10  resource paper directories, very few of them used

         11  the internet. What we found anecdotally at first was

         12  there was no widely available accessible clearing

         13  house of information on the wide range of health and

         14  support services that are available to low- income

         15  people.

         16                 We found that low- income uninsured

         17  individuals which is HITE's target audience, often

         18  have multiple needs that go far beyond just medical

         19  care and may include the need to find affordable

         20  housing, to find financial assistance, food

         21  pantries, job skills training, and so forth; the

         22  kinds of problems that any vulnerable individuals

         23  may have. And while various print directories do try

         24  to capture information on these services that they

         25  are usually limited in scope and they become
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          2  obsolete almost as soon as they are printed. There

          3  are various databases. Some are excellent, but they

          4  also tend to be more limited in scope.

          5                 This observations was confirmed in

          6  surveys. We did surveys and focus groups of health

          7  and social service professionals and they told us

          8  overwhelmingly that they lack reliable comprehensive

          9  information on the kinds of programs and

         10  organizations that are suitable for their clients.

         11  Keep in mind that these are professionals. So you

         12  can imagine how an individual feels trying to face

         13  this fragmented, complicated, constantly changing

         14  system of health and social services.

         15                 HITE was developed against this

         16  background and preliminary feedback from its first

         17  year in operations suggest that it helps to fill a

         18  very gaping hole. Because it does provide very

         19  detailed, well organized, easily accessible

         20  information for people. But it should not be the

         21  only tool available. Obviously, there are always

         22  going to be people who do not have internet access,

         23  who have limited English proficiency or simply who

         24  prefer to make a phone call, an anonymous phone

         25  call; that's something they are most familiar with.
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          2  That's why we are so enthusiastic about the 311/211

          3  initiative because we think this is an ideal

          4  complement to the kinds of tools like HITE.

          5                 I'm just going to very quickly do a

          6  power point presentation. As I said, I'm just going

          7  to do the highlights because Council Member Brewer

          8  has already seen this. As I mentioned, HITE stands

          9  for the Health Information Tool for Empowerment. It

         10  is the first and only web based tool that is

         11  designed specifically to link low- income people

         12  with the range of free and low- cost services that

         13  are available to them. It has two basic features. A

         14  comprehensive, searchable database of programs,

         15  services, organizations that are available at the

         16  community level, at the State level and at the

         17  national level that are available to low- income New

         18  Yorkers. Because they are either free or low- cost.

         19                 It also has software that was

         20  developed by the Human Resources Administration and

         21  the Mayor's Office of Health Insurance Access that

         22  screens people for their eligibility for public

         23  health insurance programs. Recently they expanded

         24  that tool so that it can now screen people for some

         25  of the lower cost private insurance options as well.
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          2  As I mentioned, these are the two basic features of

          3  the HITE website.

          4                 Our target audience are frontline

          5  workers and this is sort of the range of people who

          6  are now using HITE. I wanted to point out, we have a

          7  number of City Council members who are using it now.

          8  Only because of our limited marketing budget and

          9  outreach and in fact you are looking at the major

         10  marketer of this program, we haven't been able to

         11  reach all of you. But we do hope that the other

         12  members of the Council can become aware of this and

         13  can use this too. We also have many social service

         14  agencies including many New York City agencies that

         15  use HITE, but we also have very small community-

         16  based organizations, homeless shelter, senior

         17  centers and so forth.

         18                 These are our three partners. As I

         19  mentioned, we didn't develop HITE in a vacuum. We

         20  partnered with prominent coalitions of health and

         21  social organizations in our three pilot communities.

         22  We have a very august advisory committee that

         23  includes members of HHC, New York Academy of

         24  Medicine, consumer and provider groups and so forth.

         25  Here are some of our founders.
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          2                 We weren't able to get a internet

          3  connection, so I couldn't actually show you the

          4  website which is far more impressive than screen

          5  shots on a power point, but bear with me. This is

          6  what the home page looks like. We try to make HITE

          7  very unintimidating and user friendly. When you

          8  click on the button that says search for programs

          9  and services, you get these 12 categories. You can

         10  see that, it's a little bit hard to read, but the

         11  kinds of information we have in HITE is very, very

         12  broad.

         13                 Everything from support services for

         14  immigrants to mental health and substance abuse

         15  treatment facilities, financial assistance, all the

         16  public insurance and related programs, private

         17  health insurance programs and so on. Just to give

         18  you one example, in a category called local health

         19  and social services, this is the range of services

         20  about which you can get information, mental health

         21  and substance abuse and so forth.

         22                 We pride ourselves on the information

         23  in HITE. What we did is took all the existing

         24  sources of information that we could find including

         25  resource directories that were developed by many
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          2  people who are here in the audience. There are many

          3  excellent resource directories that we use

          4  government databases, suggestions from our partners

          5  in the community and websites and pamphlets of

          6  organizations. But every time we got an idea for a

          7  resource to enter into HITE, we had to supplement it

          8  by research including at least two calls to the

          9  organization itself to verify information and then

         10  we review each database entry. It gets reviewed by

         11  at least three people and we update the resources

         12  annually.

         13                 If you were to do a search, this is

         14  how you would do it. If you were looking for

         15  example, alcohol treatment facility, you would go to

         16  search for mental health and substance abuse, check

         17  off substance abuse alcohol. You could type in a zip

         18  code and in this case this is an East Harlem zip

         19  code and say that you are willing to go within five

         20  miles of that zip code and you would get in this

         21  particular case 46 different alcohol treatment

         22  centers within five miles of that zip code. These

         23  are treatment centers that have a sliding fee scale

         24  and/or take Medicaid or other public programs.

         25                 If you saw a resource that looked
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          2  particularly interesting to you, you could double

          3  click on it and what you would get is a tremendous

          4  amount of information on it. The name of it, I'm

          5  linked to Map Quest, so you could map a description

          6  of the organization, the services that it provides,

          7  the fees and payment policies and information on

          8  eligibility, intake hours, the parent organization

          9  and directions by public transportation.

         10                 You could do an advance search where

         11  you could also choose a medical condition and you

         12  could search by languages that the staff speak. Here

         13  are some screen shots of the eligibility calculator.

         14  We also offer a toll free help line, free training

         15  for users, and we have lots of buttons on the

         16  website that people can press and they can fill out

         17  a very short form with problems or questions and so

         18  forth and it goes straight to our e- mail account

         19  and we answer them within 24 hours.

         20                 It is available in Brooklyn and

         21  Manhattan and a seven county region in upstate New

         22  York and we hope to expand to the rest of New York

         23  City.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Include Queens in

         25  that one.
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          2                 MS. COHEN: Absolutely. Our goal is to

          3  eventually expand Statewide. But New York City is

          4  our highest priority. I'm going to wrap up my

          5  testimony by mentioning that we have this database

          6  set up as many others do as well because there is

          7  many great sources of information. But I think we

          8  are all very excited about the 311 system because it

          9  has state of the art technology. It has wide public

         10  visibility. It is a great platform from which to

         11  provide referrals for non- profit services. And, of

         12  course, the City's partnership with United Way of

         13  New York City makes perfect sense because that

         14  organization has been a leader in the 211 movement

         15  which has been successful in many communities in

         16  providing information and referral services. This is

         17  a very powerful partnership.

         18                 But they also face a daunting task as

         19  has been highlighted in the hearing this morning and

         20  based on my experience, the most significant

         21  challenge they will face and I know there are many

         22  challenges, but one of the most significant ones, it

         23  will be in collecting, processing, maintaining

         24  accurate and complete information. The kinds of

         25  information that can help people actually access a
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          2  service. You really need to have a fair amount of

          3  information about any single program or resource to

          4  know whether it is suitable for any given individual

          5  and maintaining that kind of a database is very

          6  daunting. But good information is going to be the

          7  lynch pin of the 311 system success.

          8                 As I noted, there is no single

          9  database right now that provides complete and

         10  accurate information about all non- profit services

         11  in New York. We had to use a wide variety of sources

         12  to put together our database and then we had to

         13  supplement all of those sources with a tremendous

         14  amount of research. It is very, very labor intensive

         15  process. That's why we dedicated significant

         16  resources to our staff training and to just good old

         17  pounding the pavement, doing research, calling up

         18  organizations and so forth. As much as possible, we

         19  try to partner with organizations that have useful

         20  data. We've partnered with the New York City

         21  Department of Health Bureau of STD's.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: You need to wrap

         23  up. Thank you, though.

         24                 MS. COHEN: Okay. We just hope in

         25  conclusion that the 311 system will work with us and
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          2  will use the data that we have and not try to

          3  reinvent the wheel. We look forward to a partnership

          4  with them.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

          6  much. A wonderful representative from LSNY. Go

          7  ahead.

          8                 MR. GREINER: Good morning, Chairwoman

          9  Brewer and Council Member Sanders. My name is John

         10  Greiner. I'm the Chief Technology Officer for Legal

         11  Services for New York City. LSNY rhymes with Disney

         12  as our Executive Director likes to say.

         13                 LSNY is the largest civil legal

         14  services provider in the nation for free legal

         15  assistance to low- income individuals. We help folks

         16  on matters ranging from economic development to in

         17  our Brooklyn program, domestic violence, HIV,

         18  healthcare issues, food, housing, family law. We are

         19  a front line provider of services and one of our

         20  great challenges has been making sure that we are

         21  reaching those folks that are the hardest to reach

         22  and serving those folks who are not fluent in

         23  English or have limited English proficiency. Those

         24  are probably our two greatest challenges.

         25                 You marry that with the challenge of
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          2  limited resources so that we end up turning away a

          3  good four out of five individuals. We have to triage

          4  and screen them out because we just don't have the

          5  resources to serve all the folks with critical legal

          6  need. We try to serve those with the most critical

          7  and those who will be most benefited by our

          8  assistance. LSNY has been working over the last

          9  several years to improve its technology

         10  infrastructure to actually start to provide a single

         11  point of entry for callers Citywide. We have been

         12  making use of technology like Voice over IP,

         13  Internet Protocol. Telephone systems and we have set

         14  up several targeted hotlines. One recently was the

         15  earned income tax credit hotline and the

         16  unemployment insurance hotline which the City

         17  Council has so graciously supported.

         18                 Our concern as a front line provider,

         19  of course, is that we're not devoting too many of

         20  our resources to screening callers. The more

         21  resources we devote in that area, the fewer

         22  resources we will have left to provide direct legal

         23  assistance and representation. As LSNY, on sort of a

         24  separate track and I guess I apologize for not

         25  staying on top of what the City government has been
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          2  doing, we sort of have been conceiving in our little

          3  world, a legal services 311 type system. We've sort

          4  of been thinking about building a volunteer force to

          5  do because we make use of a lot of pro bono attorney

          6  time, paralegal time and law student time to build a

          7  cadre of individuals who could help us who are

          8  especially trained on legal matters who are bound

          9  with the confidentiality restraints that we as a law

         10  firm have to provide that first level of screening.

         11                 In hearing the previous testimony, I

         12  think one of the (and by the way we are a floor to

         13  floor union shop, or wall to wall union shop) and

         14  proudly so. I think there is a sort of couple levels

         15  here of how 311 or a 211 system might operate. One

         16  is certainly just a referral which we are prepared

         17  and we would appreciate 311 doing as soon as they

         18  can. The other is actual transfer is when somebody

         19  is calling in need to actually get them into the

         20  immediate care of the service provider that is going

         21  to provide that assistance.

         22                 We're interested and it is certainly

         23  in the first and the second. Most of the clients we

         24  serve as calling us close to the last minute and so

         25  the need is to provide that help when they call and
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          2  so we are very interested in using certainly

          3  technology to keep that cost down. If the City is

          4  able to fund the staff to provide more than referral

          5  and transfer, that would be a god send for us.

          6  Certainly, if this program proceeds, it would be

          7  very helpful, I think, for a legal sector, but also

          8  for other non-profit sectors to have City support to

          9  build its infrastructure to handle the increased

         10  volume of callers.

         11                 Again, the goal is not to reduce

         12  direct services. It is to improve our ability to

         13  serve those folks who are perhaps harder to reach,

         14  who have English proficiency issues, and so having

         15  that additional assistance would make sure that we

         16  don't rob Peter to pay Paul. A couple other points,

         17  I think it is interestingly, Leah, who I just met

         18  for the first time today, LSNY has been involved

         19  with help from the inception as we talk about sort

         20  of the legal equivalent of HITE. I would suggest

         21  that instead of building one gargantuan database

         22  that the City and the United Way take a leadership

         23  role in building a standard, an XML standard

         24  Extensive Mark-Up Language. It is a geek speak. But

         25  essentially provide the different non- profit
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          2  sectors, the rules of the road and allow those

          3  non-profit sectors to build their databases of

          4  information referral services. Decentralize it, kind

          5  of like the Internet, it makes the Internet very

          6  strong. It could make the 211 and 311 system quite

          7  strong.

          8                 Along that point, I would recommend

          9  that the City work with consortia of non- profit

         10  agencies and let the individual consortia members so

         11  if there is the legal consortia, let those folks be

         12  responsible for qualifying the non- profits. So they

         13  are at the level of training, they can provide the

         14  service. They will be on the line when you transfer

         15  the call to them. You are not sort of forcing

         16  everybody to fit one size. Allow each sector to sort

         17  of develop the standards. I think ultimately, for

         18  instance in legal sector, we would be very

         19  interested in making sure that we are not two

         20  different providers providing first the triage and

         21  then the direct services.

         22                 In the legal world, you would be

         23  barred from representing any future callers who

         24  might have a conflict with the prior caller. You end

         25  up eliminating more providers for future services.
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          2  That is one thing that is particular to the legal

          3  world. You can't talk to somebody and get some

          4  confidential information and then ultimately serve

          5  somebody who might have a conflict with that person.

          6  Again, decentralize the consortia. We certainly

          7  support the expansion and it would support the

          8  financial support to help build that capacity in

          9  non- profit sector. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

         11  much. Leah.

         12                 MS. MARGULIES: Thank you, Chairperson

         13  Brewer for inviting me to speak at this Committee.

         14  Yes, we are the legal equivalent of HITE. I'm a new

         15  Project Director for LawHelp for New York City and

         16  the State of New York. LawHelp is a --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: You need to

         18  introduce yourself, Leah.

         19                 MS. MARGULIES: Oh, I'm sorry. Leah

         20  Margulies. I'm Project Director for LawHelp for the

         21  City of New York and also for the State of New York.

         22  And parenthetically, LawHelp is a national movement.

         23  There are 39 states and territories with LawHelp

         24  operating across the country. It was began about

         25  eight or nine years ago as an idea of the Legal
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          2  Services Corporation which began its funding. It has

          3  really spread enormously. It is a powerful free on-

          4  line tool for helping low- and moderate- income New

          5  Yorkers solve their legal problems.

          6                 LawHelp is a one- stop legal

          7  information clearinghouse that provides quick and

          8  accurate referrals to free legal services programs,

          9  information and links to social services related to

         10  those legal problems, advocacy and government

         11  organizations, and most importantly information

         12  about the court system (how to manage your entry

         13  into the court system), and information about our

         14  legal rights.

         15                 Every day, thousands of New Yorkers

         16  face a wide range of problems whose solutions may

         17  require some legal intervention. Low- income

         18  persons, in particular, face difficult challenges

         19  when confronted with legal problems, and they may be

         20  denied access to justice because of lack of

         21  knowledge about their legal rights and about the

         22  legal resources available to them. People need

         23  answers to questions like, What do I do if I'm

         24  served with an eviction notice? Where do I go if I

         25  need protection from an abusing spouse? How can I
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          2  get help to figure out the new Medicare drug rules,

          3  which people are really struggling with across the

          4  country?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: They walk in our

          6  district office by the hundreds every day.

          7                 MS. MARGULIES: Yes, exactly. And

          8  these problems are compounded if the individual is

          9  an immigrant, not literate in English or has low

         10  English proficiency. New York's poorest people face

         11  the most daunting barriers in obtaining legal help.

         12  Without effective legal counsel and information,

         13  low- income people are at risk of eviction, of

         14  losing access to entitlements, may suffer

         15  discrimination or other kinds of extreme hardship.

         16  LawHelp provides important relief to this.

         17                 If New York's unique 311 system were

         18  expanded to include referrals to New York non-

         19  profits, thousands of New Yorkers would benefit from

         20  a referral to LawHelp. Through this one website, a

         21  person can learn about more than 200 legal services,

         22  organizations, including contact information,

         23  eligibility requirements, intake information. They

         24  can view and link and download close to 2,000 legal

         25  information and self- help resources. They can find
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          2  hundreds of social service and advocacy

          3  organizations.

          4                 In 2005, with the help of New York

          5  Community Trust, we developed a mirror website in

          6  Spanish. LawHelp also has resources now in up to 39

          7  languages. The LawHelp website is a result of

          8  diligent efforts of hundreds of legal aid and legal

          9  service organizations throughout the State and is

         10  supported financially by the Legal Services

         11  Corporation, by the IOLA Grant System, by Bar Funds,

         12  and the United Way. In LawHelp, we already have a

         13  process in place that aggregates the best materials

         14  and keeps them current. We also have this going to

         15  court channel for LawHelp which was developed in

         16  collaboration with the Office of Court

         17  Administration.

         18                 There are 12 legal topic areas in

         19  LawHelp: Consumer, disability, education, family and

         20  juvenile, health, housing, immigration and

         21  naturalization, individual rights, life planning,

         22  public benefits, taxes, and workers rights. And we

         23  are now in the process of developing a channel

         24  devoted to senior citizens, although most of the

         25  information is already there, but sort of embedded
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          2  in the other areas of the website.

          3                 Using the website saves time for the

          4  individual user, so anyone can access the LawHelp

          5  website. But it is also used by legal and social

          6  service providers. They match the person in need

          7  with a most appropriate referrals and materials

          8  through basing the search on a zip code. So

          9  throughout the City, if you put in your zip code,

         10  you find out what where the legal service office is

         11  nearest you, what are the social service agencies

         12  nearest you, et cetera. And also how to get

         13  volunteer attorneys. The information on LawHelp is

         14  regularly updated. We have teams of attorneys

         15  actually across the State for each one of these

         16  subject areas.

         17                 I know I'm taking a little time here,

         18  but since LawHelp is a website, it operates on a

         19  small budget with a small staff and we have a lot of

         20  volunteers. But we reach of thousands of New

         21  Yorkers. In 2005, nearly 155,000 New Yorkers

         22  reviewed 820,000 pages, downloaded 65,000 resources

         23  and 130,000 legal referrals. Already, a number of

         24  City agencies have LawHelp listed on their website

         25  including HPD and the New York City Commission on
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          2  Women's Issues. So using the 311 system for this

          3  referral would substantially shorten the time it

          4  would took for a person in need to connect to the

          5  help they are looking for.

          6                 It is important to note that over the

          7  last several years, more and more low- income New

          8  Yorkers have access to the internet both

          9  individually through schools and libraries, health

         10  centers, social service, neighborhood and community

         11  organizations. So the vast majority of people who

         12  call 311 for help would be able to locate a computer

         13  or have internet access through either a family, a

         14  friend or a community resource. Right now, we are

         15  committed to bridging the digital divide affecting

         16  low- income people through a wide range of outreach

         17  and training initiatives to organizations and groups

         18  throughout the five boroughs. We have targeted

         19  outreach to librarians, community centers and right

         20  now we are working greatly to expand our outreach in

         21  the Spanish speaking community because we have this

         22  complete mirror website in Spanish.

         23                 It is exciting that the City Council

         24  is taking this initiative and especially in

         25  exploring the best way to make this available
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          2  through the 311 system and we hope that you will

          3  agree that LawHelp is an essential tool that is

          4  already in place for ensuring access to justice for

          5  all New Yorkers.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

          7  much. John, I was just curious about your

          8  decentralized notion. I think that is intriguing. At

          9  the same time that this discussion is going on about

         10  211, I think you might have been here or be

         11  knowledgeable about the fact that there is an

         12  integrated human service network discussion going

         13  on. My question to you, have you had any discussions

         14  with United Way or the 211 promoters to talk about

         15  this decentralized suggestion?

         16                 MR. GREINER: Unfortunately, we

         17  haven't.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: The timing is

         19  right. Go ahead.

         20                 MR. GREINER: I think that the over 35

         21  years of history of Legal Services has been one of a

         22  decentralized approach that local folks know the

         23  local needs like your district offices are more in

         24  touch with the needs in your district which is why

         25  Councilman Sanders wants to know what 311 calls are
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          2  coming in from his district. Similarly, having a

          3  decentralized approach, having maybe even a virtual

          4  approach where you are allowing folks from a local

          5  community to serve or volunteer or paid City staff

          6  serve the members in their community. Again, I think

          7  that is important.

          8                 I guess with our Voice over IP

          9  technology, one of the reasons we are doing that is

         10  that we don't foresee a lot of additional funding to

         11  build a single point of entry. We know it would be

         12  very disruptive for staff to move them to a physical

         13  call center. It is also kind of by need. If we are

         14  going to do this single point of phone entry, we

         15  need to take into account the fact that we have got

         16  some fabulous dedicated staff members and volunteers

         17  in the local offices. Let's use them more

         18  effectively with the technology.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: In terms of

         20  Greater New York Hospital, the question is what you

         21  are suggesting, I think is that you already have

         22  some of this information. I know how difficult it is

         23  to maintain. What you are saying is making sure that

         24  whatever system is developed doesn't duplicate what

         25  you have already done.
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          2                 MS. COHEN: Exactly.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: How do you

          4  maintain it? Do you do ongoing phone calls? How is

          5  it maintained?

          6                 MS. COHEN: We divided our database up

          7  into quarters and we get an e- mail message every

          8  time one of our resources in the database is more

          9  than eight months old saying you should begin to

         10  prepare to update this. Our commitment is to update

         11  every resource at least once a year and we're

         12  actually a head of schedule. We update it simply by

         13  calling the organization, going through a list of

         14  questions and saying is this still true. You still

         15  have this staff that speaks these languages and so

         16  forth. Then we ask them about other programs. Have

         17  you developed any new programs in the last year that

         18  we may have missed and could you provide information

         19  on those.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: What do you do?

         21                 MS. MARGULIES: Similarly, we have a

         22  tickler system which sends out an e- mail to the

         23  organizations on our system. We have one set of

         24  process for updating all the organizational

         25  information and then we also have a process for
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          2  updating the content. Because legal content is

          3  extremely important. Laws change, court cases happen

          4  that change the content.

          5                 We have a task force for each of

          6  these subject areas of lawyers that are volunteers

          7  throughout the State. They are mostly Legal Services

          8  and Legal Aid lawyers. Our consortia also is made up

          9  of the State Bar Association, the City Bar

         10  Association, Vauls Per Bono Attorneys and they make

         11  up the task forces based on the subject area. Our

         12  website is similarly updated every year.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

         14  much. Go ahead, John.

         15                 MR. GREINER: I think the 211, the

         16  LawHelp Services is actually conceived of here in

         17  New York City. I think New York has really been at

         18  the leading edge of a lot of these technologies and

         19  other parts of the country have been modeling it

         20  going forward. I think it is sort of enhances the

         21  image of New York. It is just this great City in

         22  taking on 311 in the biggest or I guess most complex

         23  City in the country which sort of further that

         24  image.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you. I just
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          2  want to indicate that Marcia Stein had to leave. She

          3  is the Executive Director of Citymeals on Wheels and

          4  she had provided testimony on an example that she

          5  had when she called during the 311. During the time

          6  when home delivered meals were frozen in the Bronx,

          7  meaning that it was frozen meals not that the

          8  weather was frozen. I think what happened was that

          9  seniors called and there wasn't a home delivered

         10  meals, when the 311 operator passed through to DFTA,

         11  Department for the Aging. You were suppose to ask

         12  for in- home services. She just made a point that it

         13  would have been good to have somebody there talking

         14  to the seniors who were able to understand the

         15  difference between in- home services and frozen

         16  meals. Obviously, some of this can be worked out by

         17  better screens at the 311 operator situation. I'm

         18  just saying, she felt strongly about the service.

         19  Just gave me one example.

         20                 I want to thank all three of you for

         21  your support and we will certainly be in touch. We

         22  have been rejoined by Council Member Oliver Koppell.

         23  Thank you. What's next? Karen Schlesinger, Executive

         24  Director for Resources for Children with Special

         25  Needs; Nancy Miller, from the VISIONS/Services for
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          2  the Blind and Visual Impaired; and Karen Gourgey who

          3  is the Director of the Computer Center for Visually

          4  Impaired People; Edo Banach, The Great Medicare

          5  Rights Center which is saving all us every day.

          6  That's the last panel, thank you. Whoever would like

          7  to start, feel free. Introduce yourself and begin.

          8  Welcome.

          9                 MS. SCHLESINGER: Good morning and

         10  thank you very much Chairwoman Brewer for having

         11  this hearing on this very important subject. My name

         12  is Karen Schlesinger and I am Executive Director of

         13  Resources for Children with Special Needs, a

         14  Citywide and metro area wide information referral,

         15  advocacy training and support center whose purpose

         16  is to connect New York City children with

         17  disabilities and other special needs ages birth to

         18  26 and their families to the services they need.

         19                 Resources for Children with Special

         20  Needs has developed and maintains New York City's

         21  most comprehensive database of services for children

         22  and youth with disabilities and special needs. It

         23  contains 4,000 agencies, 10,000 sites and 20,000

         24  services. It uses the AIRS standards and Taxonomy.

         25  Our basic top line searchable database is available
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          2  free to anyone, anywhere on the internet. An in-

          3  depth version is available in all the City's public

          4  libraries and to all ACS staff and contract

          5  agencies. Our unique series of resource directories

          6  is printed directly from our database. We invite you

          7  to visit our database on the web,

          8  www.resourcesnycdatabase.org.

          9                 We fully support the initiative of

         10  the Mayor, the United Way, the Department of

         11  Information Technology and Telecommunications and

         12  the Human Resources Administration to expand 311

         13  services to include not- for- profit non-

         14  governmental services. We have worked toward this

         15  end as an active member of the New York City 211

         16  task force and New York State 211 coalition.

         17                 The two models we think that could

         18  meet the I&R needs of New York City most effectively

         19  are: A central database/I&R call center that

         20  licenses specialized human service databases

         21  maintained by the licensor, for use in direct

         22  referral; and a HUB system in which calls to 311 are

         23  answered and then seamlessly connected to the

         24  appropriate specialized I&R agency which maintains

         25  its database and provides I&R services.
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          2                 In the HUB system, which is the one

          3  we prefer, increased call volume could be

          4  efficiently managed, staffing would be spread among

          5  experts, location would not be an issue or at least

          6  not as great an issue, the time frame for

          7  implementation would take into account the readiness

          8  of the relevant databases and I&R organizations and

          9  another factor that I&R's and their databases should

         10  meet national 211 standards.

         11                 Either way, the system developed for

         12  an expanded 311 in New York City must incorporate

         13  specialized I&R's. Utilizing specialized I&R

         14  databases as the foundation for an expanded 311 will

         15  provide the mechanism for ongoing information

         16  gathering and coordination. Information centers and

         17  I&R providers have already identified and gathered

         18  information from thousands of human service

         19  organizations in New York City and the Metro New

         20  York area. They have database maintenance programs

         21  in place to update and expand the information

         22  necessary for Information and Referral.

         23                 For the past 22 years, we have been

         24  committed to universal access to human services for

         25  all New York City citizens. We really do look
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          2  forward to the reality of a comprehensive,

          3  coordinated I&R system linking all New Yorkers to

          4  both public and non- public services through

          5  expansion of New York City's 311. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

          7  much. I think Nancy Miller is next.

          8                 MS. MILLER: Yes, thank you. Good

          9  morning, actually good afternoon and thank you

         10  Councilwoman and Councilmen for this opportunity to

         11  testify. My name is Nancy D. Miller. I am the

         12  Executive Director/CEO of VISIONS/Services for the

         13  Blind and Visually Impaired, a not- for- profit

         14  vision rehabilitation and social service agency.

         15  VISIONS is celebrating 80 years of service promoting

         16  the independence of people of all ages who are blind

         17  and visually impaired.

         18                 In 2003, with funding from the

         19  Lavelle Fund for the Blind and in partnership with

         20  the American Foundation for the Blind and the New

         21  York State Commission for the Blind and Visually

         22  Handicapped, VISIONS created Blindline, a call

         23  center and database staffed by blind and visually

         24  impaired interns. Here with me today are both the

         25  Coordinator of Blindline, Michael Cush and a
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          2  Blindline intern, Pedro Martinez. They are available

          3  to answer any questions.

          4                 Blindline was created at the request

          5  of blind and visually impaired consumers, their

          6  families and employees in both not- for- profit and

          7  government agencies, seeking an easy to access one

          8  stop information service. In addition, to creating

          9  and maintaining a verified on- line database of

         10  resources, products and services for people who are

         11  blind and visually impaired, Blindline provides

         12  vocational training and a work experience for

         13  legally blind individuals who desire a career in a

         14  call center, customer service or technology based

         15  work setting.

         16                 Interns not only learn customer

         17  service skills, but also learn data entry and

         18  verification, writing web content, marketing, and

         19  how to interact with blind callers of all ages,

         20  their families, and professionals in the fields of

         21  vision rehabilitation and social services.

         22  Management and day to day operations of Blindline

         23  are fully accessible for totally blind and partially

         24  sighted administrators and interns utilizing speech

         25  and magnification software.
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          2                 In New York City, estimates are that

          3  there are nearly 60,000 blind persons of all ages

          4  and 364,000 persons with vision impairments. The

          5  estimated working age population of New York City

          6  residents between the ages of 22 and 64 years who

          7  are blind is over 21,000. In the same age group, the

          8  number jumps to over 166,000 persons with vision

          9  impairments. With the unemployment rate of blind New

         10  Yorkers estimated at nearly 70 percent and dozens of

         11  blind residents seeking full- time paid employment

         12  in call center, customer service, and technology

         13  based settings, jobs that are accessible for people

         14  who are blind must be included if 311 is expanded.

         15  311 by the way right now is totally inaccessible for

         16  a blind operator. So blind people cannot be hired

         17  for these very important and very valuable

         18  government jobs.

         19                 According to an article in the March

         20  2001 issue of the Journal of Visual Impairment and

         21  Blindness, with unpublished data from the Census

         22  Survey, 51 percent of those reporting no visual

         23  impairment used a computer on a regular basis, that

         24  number drops dramatically to 13 percent of those who

         25  report a limitation in seeing. Access to the
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          2  internet is comparable; 57 percent of those with no

          3  vision impairment have internet access as compared

          4  to 21 percent of those who are visually impaired.

          5  For those information services that are internet

          6  based, they basically disenfranchise the blind

          7  community since most blind people don't have access

          8  to the internet. Call centers with trained operators

          9  are therefore especially critical for blind and

         10  visually impaired New Yorkers who are much less

         11  likely to access information independently through

         12  the internet.

         13                 In considering 311 expansion to cover

         14  not- for- profit and social service information, my

         15  first concern is that 311 currently does not employ

         16  blind operators since it is not accessible,

         17  eliminating job opportunities for a trained and

         18  eager workforce. Any expansion of 311 must contract

         19  with the existing specialized verified databases

         20  that have been built with trained volunteers,

         21  interns and staff. 311 expansion must not eliminate

         22  having blind consumers, who have used and benefitted

         23  from adapted and specialized programs and resources,

         24  responding to callers who are newly blind, new to

         25  services or calling on behalf of a newly blind
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          2  family member.

          3                 It is strongly recommended that New

          4  York City consider contracting with existing

          5  specialized call centers like Blindline so that

          6  trained operators who are themselves blind can move

          7  into paid employment in settings like VISIONS that

          8  are already accessible. If existing 311 operators

          9  are utilized to answer social service callers, they

         10  will need extensive training to appropriately handle

         11  calls from people with disabilities, people in

         12  crisis and people unsure of exactly what they are

         13  seeking. The current 311 operators often do not have

         14  the patience or the sensitivity to handle

         15  emotionally fragile, crisis involved callers and

         16  have shown a lack of sensitivity at times to callers

         17  with disabilities. I have heard complaints from

         18  blind New Yorkers calling 311 to report snow covered

         19  corners and crossings only to be told they have to

         20  look up the phone numbers of sanitation or other

         21  City departments.

         22                 Another significant issue to be

         23  addressed is how a 311 operator will determine which

         24  not- for- profit or social service agency will get a

         25  referral if more than one program offers the same or
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          2  similar service. Will the operator know the

          3  particular expertise or waiting lists of each

          4  agency?

          5                 Will each agency be able to directly

          6  update and verify the information listed about their

          7  services which is a service we provide at Blindline

          8  that the agencies themselves actually update their

          9  records so that it is the most up to date and most

         10  accurate. How frequently will information be

         11  verified and validated? We do it twice a year for

         12  those that haven't done it themselves. The separate

         13  component of managing the verification and updating

         14  of data is an excellent employment opportunity for

         15  blind workers by contract or as City employees.

         16                 The final recommendation is that

         17  since New York City currently manages complaints

         18  from New Yorkers, an opportunity for employment of

         19  people who are blind already exists. Staffing a

         20  complaint desk is an excellent employment

         21  opportunity for blind operators and New York City

         22  must improve its outreach to New Yorkers who are

         23  blind seeking employment. VISIONS will certainly

         24  assist in this effort to match qualified blind

         25  applicants to employment opportunities within New
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          2  York City government. If 311 is to take over the

          3  information and referral function of the not- for-

          4  profit and social service sector, then the

          5  employment opportunities must be inclusive of all

          6  New Yorkers, with and without disabilities, with and

          7  without sight.

          8                 I look forward to working with the

          9  City Council to plan for and construct an

         10  information and referral system that meets the needs

         11  of all New Yorkers and provides employment

         12  opportunities for people who are blind and with

         13  other disabilities. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you. Karen

         15  Gourgey. Thank you.

         16                 DR. GOURGEY: Good morning. My name is

         17  Dr. Karen Gourgey. I am the Director of the Baruch

         18  College Computer Center for Visually Impaired

         19  People. And I thank you very much, Chairwoman Brewer

         20  for the opportunity to be here and speak with you

         21  all. For 25 years, the Computer Center for Visually

         22  Impaired People at Baruch, which incidentally is

         23  part of a division of continuing and professional

         24  studies there at the college, we have been involved

         25  with computer training for people who are blind and
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          2  visually impaired. And the importance of that for

          3  this discussion today is that an accessible computer

          4  has the potential really to help people who are

          5  blind and visually impaired, be able to access

          6  information in an entirely different and new

          7  important way.

          8                 The very fact that the core of a

          9  computer is zeros and ones. The core of the

         10  computers information is not print. It means that if

         11  things are done correctly and if things are handled

         12  correctly, and if thought is given to design at the

         13  outset, computer systems can be accessible as Nancy

         14  was just mentioning, in such a way that people can

         15  access them through speech and through large print

         16  so that people have a level of access to information

         17  that had not been possible beforehand. But there

         18  does need to be thought up front about the designing

         19  of a system. Otherwise you end up with a system the

         20  way we have it at the moment in terms of 311 that is

         21  not accessible to somebody who might have the

         22  qualifications to work with the system as a customer

         23  service call center person.

         24                 Imagine for a moment what you would

         25  do if your vision is beginning to rapidly decline.
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          2  Reading will becoming more difficult. Keeping

          3  organized at work will become more difficult. Simple

          4  tasks like cooking, dressing, walking around your

          5  neighborhood will become more difficult. Finding

          6  information in a phone book as was just referred to

          7  will become nearly impossible as very often will

          8  finding information on the web. Unfortunately,

          9  people when they are experiencing some kind of

         10  vision loss, what do they do? They go to their

         11  doctors which is to be expected.

         12                 However, typically eye care

         13  professionals, ophthalmologist and so forth and

         14  primary care doctors do not have the knowledge to

         15  refer people to vision rehabilitation agencies such

         16  as VISIONS. People are therefore, too often left

         17  totally on their own to find some kind of services

         18  that would allow them to become independent and

         19  maintain their independence in their home and work

         20  and in their community. The services are available,

         21  but people are not referred. The medical

         22  professional, there is a gaping hole in the path

         23  that a person might be able to follow and be able to

         24  get to the information that they need.

         25                 The statistics that we have using
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          2  National Census Data show that in New York City

          3  there are more than 58,000 people aged 15 and up who

          4  cannot read ordinary newsprint even with contacts

          5  and glasses. There are 178,000 people who have great

          6  difficulty doing so also in New York City. We

          7  certainly applaud the expansion of 311 to the non-

          8  profit and social service sector because the fact is

          9  that this 311 system has marvelously penetrated the

         10  consciousness of the City. People do see 311 as a

         11  place to go to when there is a need.

         12                 But there is definitely a need to be

         13  careful in terms of making sure that the services

         14  that are put forth and that are talked about in 311

         15  for our people with visual impairments are accurate

         16  and they are the correct services. There is a field

         17  of work for people who are blind and visually

         18  impaired. But it seems not to be as known, not to be

         19  as visible and yet when those services are accessed

         20  for folks who are blind and visually impaired, the

         21  amount of independence and the amount of possibility

         22  for folks is incredibly high if the services are

         23  correctly identified and accessed.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: I'm just going to

         25  ask you to start to wrap up if you don't mind. Thank
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          2  you.

          3                 DR. GOURGEY: The one thing I would

          4  like to invite all of you to do if your time permits

          5  is to visit us at the Computer Center for Visually

          6  Impaired People so that you can really get a sense

          7  of what it means to use an accessible computer and

          8  what is possible for people by this means. Thank you

          9  very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

         11  much. Edo Banach from the General Counsel Medicare

         12  Rights Center.

         13                 MR. BANACH: Good afternoon, Madam

         14  Chairwoman. Thank you for the time. Thank you for

         15  inviting the Medicare Rights Center and Happy

         16  Valentine's Day. As you know, the Medicare Rights

         17  Center is the largest independent source of Medicare

         18  information and assistance in the United States. And

         19  our main office is here in New York City. Day in and

         20  day out we work to assist people with Medicare

         21  helping them access needed healthcare. Tens of

         22  thousands of callers use our help lines annually. It

         23  seems like 10,000 called us last week alone. And the

         24  greatest and gravest unmet need of older and

         25  disabled Americans is the availability of affordable
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          2  prescription medicine. We are seeing that play out.

          3                 Thank you especially for the

          4  opportunity to talk to you about the need for

          5  expanding 311 services to include information on

          6  social and non- profit services. The timing of this

          7  hearing is perfect from our perspective. As you

          8  know, Medicare is under going major changes in 2006

          9  heading towards 2007. Starting on January 1, 2006,

         10  Medicare expanded to include prescription drug

         11  benefits. And New Yorkers with both Medicare and

         12  Medicaid especially underwent a massive change in

         13  their benefits from Medicaid to Medicare. Millions

         14  of people moved from one benefit system to another

         15  nationally; hundreds of thousands in the City of New

         16  York alone.

         17                 Choosing an appropriate prescription

         18  drug plan as Part D maximizing benefits under that

         19  plan and as we go forward, navigating the confusing

         20  rules of each plan and actually getting what's

         21  coming to each individual is key. That's where an

         22  active social service provider/government

         23  collaboration is imperative.

         24                 In establishing 311, New York City

         25  recognized the utility of providing information on
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          2  an array of services to its citizens. The expansion

          3  to the non- profit and social services is a natural.

          4  Sometimes the best information and the best services

          5  lie outside of a City agency. That doesn't mean that

          6  City workers have no role. It means that the City

          7  has a role in screening, in educating its workers

          8  and those workers have a role and then referring

          9  cases to the entities best able to meet individual

         10  needs.

         11                 Recognizing this, Medicare Rights

         12  Center has been working with DFTA, the City's

         13  Department for the Aging, which has been exceedingly

         14  responsive and responsible to establish a protocol

         15  for referring low- income people to the Medicare

         16  Rights Center so that we can sign them up for the

         17  programs that best serve their needs. Our program is

         18  called Linking Individuals in Need with Care and

         19  Services (LINCS). It is not a web based program, but

         20  rather a program that utilizes individuals who

         21  sometimes are in the office, sometimes are in their

         22  home; well trained individuals who are able to

         23  shepherd people through the often complex and

         24  complicated process in order to get whatever

         25  programs they need, Medicare savings programs, low-
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          2  income subsidy programs and other programs to make

          3  it very quick.

          4                 The other thing that we have been

          5  doing is our web based program, Medicare

          6  Interactive, which provides educational tool for

          7  individuals serving people with Medicare. Again, an

          8  example such as HITE is another example is out

          9  there; a good and updated database that should and

         10  could be utilized in expanding 311 to social non-

         11  profit services. The key is really to collaborate

         12  with government where collaboration would reduce

         13  redundancy, refer individual cases to us so that we

         14  can help sign them up for government programs,

         15  especially when those programs may be federal

         16  programs. And two, utilizing whatever information we

         17  have compiled over the years.

         18                 MRC appreciates the City Council's

         19  support of its mission. We currently receive support

         20  from the City Council for our education and

         21  counseling programs. However, the human need is far,

         22  far greater than the support we currently receive.

         23  Of course, additional support would always be

         24  appreciated and would really allow the Medicare

         25  Rights Center to serve New Yorkers with Medicare in
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          2  a cost- efficient and this is really what we are

          3  talking about, a cost- efficient way to get the

          4  services to the individuals. Here you have the

          5  federal government creating a program not so great.

          6  The Medicare Rights Center is going to help the City

          7  of New York meet the human need that's out there.

          8                 Just to wrap up, I will just thank

          9  you for holding this hearing and it is incredibly

         10  helpful. Know that we are on stand by to help New

         11  York's older and disabled individuals with their

         12  Medicare needs and I'll take any questions you may

         13  have.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

         15  much. Robert Hayes saying more money from the City

         16  Council. I got that, thank you. Just a very quick

         17  question because time is of the essence and you are

         18  the last panel. We appreciate your staying around

         19  and participating. There was a discussion earlier

         20  regarding how some feel this program could be rolled

         21  out. It is complicated. I think today you got an

         22  even better sense of how complicated it will be.

         23  United Way, HRA, and non- profit sector, there is

         24  many, many questions before any of this happens.

         25  Everybody understandably has their own databases,
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          2  not to mention their own services.

          3                 It was clear from Legal Services of

          4  New York, every sort of area has their own way of

          5  expertise. Obviously, the legal profession, people

          6  working, visually impaired, the list goes on. My

          7  question to you is there was a suggestion today that

          8  it kind of work in sort of pod fashion or sector

          9  fashion as opposed to one gigantic database. Do you

         10  think that would make sense? Again, the details are

         11  long in the making. But the question would be how do

         12  you think something like this could be rolled out?

         13  And also, my other question is how do you work with

         14  City agencies currently? What is your information

         15  and referral regarding City agencies currently?

         16  Karen, won't you start because you are at the end

         17  there.

         18                 MS. GOURGEY: This Karen?

         19                 MS. SCHLESINGER: We're both Karen's.

         20  We work with City agencies in a number of ways. In

         21  terms of information and referral, people calling

         22  just for direct assistance. People from almost all

         23  City agencies call us. We do a lot of outreach and

         24  publicity. Right now, we have just entered into an

         25  arrangement with ACS, the Administration for
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          2  Children Services, to put our searchable database,

          3  the in- depth version on their internet so that all

          4  ACS employees and contract agencies will have access

          5  to the information and then they can call us if they

          6  need help. We've also put the database, the in-

          7  depth version into the public libraries systems of

          8  Queens, Brooklyn, and Manhattan. Again, people can

          9  use the database search on the database and then

         10  call for further help.

         11                 It is a combination and I was pleased

         12  to see in the write up of your Committee that there

         13  is a possibility and this was also in the plan of

         14  combining the 211/311 telephone concept with an

         15  eventual on- line component. We are kind of

         16  operating in that way, but I guess the short answer

         17  is we get calls from many agencies. We do training

         18  for them in resource development and we have

         19  relationships with many.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: The other Karen.

         21                 MS. GOURGEY: Thank you. We work with

         22  the City in a couple of ways. We provide braille

         23  production service for the City. We recently did the

         24  booklet on emergency preparedness that the City put

         25  out. We also make ourselves available to look at
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          2  various websites in the City to see the degree to

          3  which they are accessible because if a website is

          4  out there and has all the information, but if a

          5  button doesn't speak when somebody using a computer

          6  with a screen reader, then the button is useless to

          7  that individual. They hear image, image, image and

          8  they are getting no information from that at all. We

          9  are an available resource to help look at that and

         10  we would be interested in working with 311 to help

         11  to bridge that technology gap, to bridge that access

         12  gap within the system that Nancy was talking about

         13  so it could work.

         14                 The other thing in response to your

         15  question, I do think the pod idea or the

         16  decentralize idea makes sense because it puts a

         17  little bit less onus on the workers in the central

         18  system. They get enough information and then know

         19  where to send a call so that it can really be

         20  properly channeled.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 MR. BANACH: The first question, our

         24  current collaboration with the City is pretty

         25  robust. We work regularly with the Department for
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          2  the Aging and also HRA. HRA with those Medicaid,

          3  quasi Medicaid programs that people with Medicare

          4  eligible for, DFTA on an array of services for those

          5  individuals as well. It has been wonderful, though

          6  should be formalized more. It is sort of ad hoc at

          7  this point. We're kind of working towards

          8  formalizing some of those relationships something

          9  that 211 could definitely help. A 311 including 211

         10  services could definitely help with.

         11                 And the second, I agree with the

         12  gentleman from Legal Services, decentralization is a

         13  good idea especially with Medicare. Some of this

         14  information is so, so specific that it wouldn't make

         15  sense to duplicate that at the City level. It

         16  doesn't mean you need fewer City workers, it just

         17  means that those City workers could refer the cases

         18  to well- trained individuals. You wouldn't have

         19  redundancy and it would probably be the most

         20  efficient use of government funding in any event.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: You can push down

         22  the computer top. Won't you just do that? Thanks. Go

         23  ahead.

         24                 MS. MILLER: Thanks. VISIONS actually

         25  works with a number of City agencies and I think the
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          2  City tends to work best with those agencies that

          3  they either have contracts with or the agencies that

          4  they have involved in their advisory committees. We

          5  work closely with DFTA because most blind people are

          6  elderly and we also work closely with DYCD. In fact,

          7  when DYCD developed Youth Line, they co- branded it

          8  with Blindline. So the brochures actually have the

          9  City number and the Blindline number on the same

         10  brochure with the idea that we need to get a lot of

         11  information out to the people who are least likely

         12  to get it or know where to find it.

         13                 In fact, VISIONS is listed in HITE.

         14  In fact, VISIONS collaborates with all three

         15  panelists who are sitting on this table. But each

         16  one of us is reinventing the wheel because it is

         17  dependent on each social service provider to make

         18  sure that everybody else in the City knows what they

         19  do and that we know enough to know where to refer

         20  to. So the idea of having some type of a one call

         21  place makes perfect sense. However, just as Medicare

         22  Rights and Special Needs Organization have their own

         23  expertise, we have to be sure that whoever the first

         24  portal is knows enough to know where to refer. Then

         25  I think the idea of decentralization makes perfect
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          2  sense. Because then you don't need to duplicate, you

          3  can protect the legal rights if you are calling

          4  about a legal problem.

          5                 The big if, if the first call goes to

          6  the person who knows where to refer to

          7  appropriately, whether it is the 311 operator or a

          8  separate cadre of operators, it is knowing where to

          9  refer appropriately and I think using the Standards

         10  of AIRS is really what is making this system work

         11  elsewhere in the country and elsewhere in New York

         12  State, is you have a certain standard of if you say

         13  you are the first number, what do you need to know

         14  how to do in order to be able to get the person to

         15  what they need. It is that standard that I think we

         16  have to keep.

         17                 Just as a point, the Rochester 211

         18  system is completely run by an agency for the blind

         19  with blind operators. They developed the hardware

         20  and the software to be completely accessible and

         21  used it as a way to provide paid employment to

         22  people who generally have a hard time finding work.

         23  I think there are ways of thinking about the system

         24  now before it is created to make sure that it takes

         25  into account this ease of use by the population that
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          2  you are referred to the right place. Because there

          3  is nothing more frustrating, and, in fact, it opens

          4  up employment opportunities for people who currently

          5  aren't working.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

          7  much. We've also been joined in the back by Richard

          8  Murphy who will submit testimony. And we also had

          9  testimony submitted by Aletta Weintraub (phonetic)

         10  who was one of the early initiators of 211 and also

         11  there was another one here, Phones for Life, which

         12  is an organization that we worked with in terms of

         13  technology. I want to thank everyone who has joined

         14  us here today to say that this is the beginning of

         15  the conversation. I think that many aspects of what

         16  came from the testimony today that we will be part

         17  of the ongoing discussion. I think that's why we are

         18  here in the City Council is to hear from you and

         19  then to work with you to do the appropriate follow

         20  up. Thank you very much. This hearing is concluded.

         21                 (Meeting adjourned at 12:35 p.m.)

         22                 (Following written testimony was

         23  ready into the record)

         24
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          2

          3

          4                 Good morning. My name is Marcia

          5  Stein. I am Executive Director of Citymeals on

          6  Wheels. Our agency raises private funds from about

          7  40,000 different New Yorkers' to underwrite the cost

          8  of 2.3 million home delivered meals for our City's

          9  17,000 homebound elderly. To carry out our work, we

         10  contract with a network of 83 community- based

         11  organizations throughout the five boroughs. These

         12  agencies certify the eligibility of their local

         13  elderly, purchase food and prepare meals for them

         14  and bring these to their doors one by one. They

         15  perform an incredible service.

         16                 Citymeals has daily contact with

         17  community- based agencies and because our name is so

         18  well known, we also receive hundreds of phone calls

         19  from the elderly themselves or from hospitals,

         20  family members and neighbors concerned about their

         21  welfare. We already have a bilingual intake worker

         22  assigned to the telephone, a person who refers these

         23  calls to the appropriate agencies and follows each

         24  referral through the system. If there are waiting

         25  times for assessment, we want to know. If there is a
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          2  wait list for meals as there is in certain parts of

          3  the City, we want to know that as well. We need to

          4  know these things because we have a special fund to

          5  provide the support agencies needed if they are to

          6  expand their service beyond what the government

          7  supports through its own grants.

          8                 We are delighted that 311 is

          9  expanding its service to provide direct access to

         10  agencies like ours. We do nothing but home delivered

         11  meals and believe we can do a far more efficient job

         12  of referral than can the centralized Department for

         13  the Aging which must handle all kinds of inquiries

         14  related to its various services. I remember when

         15  there was a change to frozen meals in the Bronx and

         16  our elderly were reporting late deliveries and other

         17  problems. I tested the 311 line. A live person

         18  answered. When I said it was about home delivered

         19  meals in the Bronx, I got the Department for the

         20  Aging line.

         21                 There were several prompts with

         22  numbers I should press with different kinds of

         23  services. None said "home delivered meals." I later

         24  found out that I should have pressed "in home

         25  services." That is the kind of problem our elderly
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          2  face. How good it would be if they got a line that

          3  said "Citymeals on Wheels" and a real person

          4  answered and could ask where they live and refer

          5  them right to that agency. How much better if we

          6  could follow up and see if they got their meals and

          7  how they like them. Considering that 73 percent of

          8  our home delivered meals clients live alone, it is

          9  not surprising that they are pleased to receive the

         10  call from us.

         11                 Our office is open during business

         12  hours and the main line has roll over capacity. Most

         13  callers receive a live person at the other end of

         14  the line and even if we are closed, our staff knows

         15  that all calls must be answered within the day and

         16  all complaints followed up with the appropriate

         17  assessment agency or community based meal provider.

         18  I would be happy to answer any of your questions.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 12:35 p.m.)
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          9                 I, LORI SANTOMIERI, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.
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         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.
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